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Mission Statement

It is our mission to provide for the safe and environmentally sound development of oil and
natural gas resources throughout our current and future production areas in the Appalachian
Basin and Montana Breaks. Through development, exploration, growth and opportunity we

will maximize shareholder value and be committed to being the finest in our industry.
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l John D. Oil and Gas Company is an independent oil and
gas well operator located in Cleveland, Ohio, and is one of
the leading urbanized drilling operators in the state. The
company currently owns and operates more than 42 oil and
gas wells which have been drilled in the last two years
throughout the Appalachian Basin, with plans to drill 30 to
50 wells a year. With a strong affiliation to companies such
as Great Plains Exploration LLC, and Orwell Natural Gas
Company, John D. Oil and Gas Company has the ability to
drill wells more quickly and efficiently, and is able to get
its product into the market faster than other operators in

‘ the region.

! T T

¢ In addition to the Appalachian Basin area, John D. Oil and
Gas Company currently is the managing member and has
a 43.8% interest in Kykuit Resources, LLC with plans to
drill multiple oil and gas wells in the Missouri Breaks
‘ region of Central Montana. John D. has acquired over
200,000 acres in its lease block and has plans to drill as early
as May of 2008. John D. Oil and Gas Company believes
that participating in opportunities such as this is what puts
the company at the forefront of the oil and gas industry.

Gregory | Osborne
Presideind,

Chief Operating Officer,
Director

Richard M. Osborne
Chairmar of e Board,
Chiief Lxventive Officer

John D. Oil & Gas Company




John D. 0il & Gas Wells

Orwell-Trumbull Pipeline

JOEIN T, O & GAS WELLS
— ORWELL-TRUMBULL PIPELINLE
o 128238 X 7.3 1t
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e
>F

John B. 0il & Gas Wells are located in close proximity to the Orwell-Trumbull
Pipeline.

The Orwell-Trumbull Pipeline is a high pressure steel natural gas pipeline. The pipeline
originates in Mantua, Chio, interconnecting with North Coast Gas Transmission’s pipeline

and traverses north approximately thirty-nine miles through portions of Portage, Geauga and
Lake Counties. The pipeline is owned by the Orwell-Trumbull Pipeline Company, LLC, which
is an intrastate natural gas transportation pipeline company regulated by the Public Utilities
Commission of Ohio.

John D. Oil & Gas Company
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Comorate Headquarters

John D. Oil and Gas Company
8500 Station Street, Suite 345
Mentor, OH 44060

Telephone: (440) 255-6325

Fax: (440) 205-8680

Annual Meeting

John D. Oil and Gas Company’s Annual
Meeting of the Shareholders is scheduled for
June 4, 2008, 10:00 a.m. at LaMalfa Centre,
5783 Heisley Road, Mentor, Ohio.

Stock Listing

The common stock of John D. Oil and Gas
Company trades on the Over-the-Counter
Bulletin Board Market or the OTCBB under
the symbol “JDOG”.

At December 31, 2007 there were 9,019,015
shares of common stock issued and
outstanding which were held of record by
approximately 1,728 shareholders. This does
not include the number of persons whose
stock is in nominee or “street name” accounts
through brokers.

Investor Relations and Form 10-KSB

John D. Oil and Gas Company’s form 10-KSB
was filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 28, 2008,

Shareholders, analysts or potential investors
desiring additional information may make
their request in writing to John D. Oil and

Gas Company, C. Jean Mihitsch, Chief
Financial Officer, 8500 Station Street, Suite 345,
Mentor, OH 44060.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, New Jersey 07016-3572
Investor Relations: 1-800-368-5948

Market Makers

Hill Thompson

Swerney Cartwright & Co.
Stern Agee

Hudson Securities, Inc.
Knight Trading

Pershing LLC

E*Trade

Independent Auditors

Maloney + Novotny LLC
1300 East 9th Street, Suite 1850
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

John D. 0il and Gas Commen Stock Prices

First Quarter $0.65 $0.52
Second Quarter 0.75 0.30
Third Quarter 1.01 0.55
Fourth Quarter 0.90 0.60
2006 HIGH LOW
First Quarter $1.00 $0.40
Second Quarter 0.80 0.60
Third Quarter 1.20 0.61
Fourth Quarter 0.80 0.52

John D. Qil & Gas Company
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“Great organization and a talented group of folks. They are knowledgeable, responsive, respectful and most
importantly honest.” - Lakeland Community College

John . Qil & Gas Company
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Message to Shareholders

My father has always said, “the days are long and the

years are short” and [ have to say that is a very
correct statement. Once again another year goes by.
2007 was filled with excitement, hard work, long
days, good wells, bad wells, and medium wells. 1
suppose I just summed up the oil and natural gas
business in a nut shell, but at the end of the day,
hard work, a little luck, and prices on your side will
usually result in a good year in the oil patch. This
year John D. Oil and Gas Company hired its own
staff geologist and I am proud to say we are fully
intergrated with our own geology, title, and land
acquisition departments. We have fine tuned and
detailed an assembly line approach from the
beginning of finding the geology, to the end result
of turning the drill bit to the right. Our geology, land,
and title work is in sequence to develop good
prospects in a timely fashion.

Although we had a loss for the year end of 2007, we
were able to cut our losses by 54% from the previous
year and more then doubled our revenues for natural
gas sales. Our income from discontinued operations
was $287,104 due to the sale of our Gahanna, Ohio
self storage facility. With only one self storage facility
remaining, our full attention and business plan has
been dedicated to oil and gas operations.

We had a goal to drill 35 wells this year. We fell
slightly short of that goal because of a great
opportunity and large capital contribution we made
into Kykuit, Resources, LLC. In 2007 we drilled 26
wells and also formed a partnership with Kykuit
Resources, LLC. John D. Oil and Gas Company has a
44% interest in Kykuit Resources, LLC. In August of
2007 Kykuit closed on a land lease acquisition for
$$2,458,461.00 which was comprised of 150,027.42 net
acres. In addition to that acreage amount in
September, Kykuit added 53,815.38 acres to its lease
block which it acquired at a Montana state sale in
Helena, Montana. This puts Kykuit's acreage posi-

tion in Montana at over 200,000 net acres. Kykuit has
plans to drill 10 to 15 test holes as early as May, 2008.
Based on preliminary investigations, the Company is
very hopeful that this project will be a success.

Overall, John D. Oil and Gas Company is very
excited about the position it has in the oil and gas
industry and continues to expand its place in the oil
patch. Partnership with Great Plains Exploration,
LLC has enabled John D. Qil and Gas Company to
have access to a drilling rig and oil and gas service
field equipment without totally relying on a third
party. John D. Oil and Gas Company continues to
look for joint venture partners in the industry and
was successful in a partnership with 4 wells in Ohio
with another producer this year. We are open to
ideas, partnerships, and working together with other
industry partners. We can bring a lot to the table with
our relationship with other companies’ and we
acknowledge other companies expertise and strong
lease positions in certain areas. We also are adamant
and strong minded in developing other areas such as
Montana, and other areas in the United States.
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now has close to 225,000 acres under lease in Montana.

l John D. Oil & Gas Company

Due to the recent partnership with Kykuit Resources, LLC, John D. Oil and Gas Company
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John D. 0il & Gas Company Form 10-KSB

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-KSB

[X] ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007
OR
[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Commission file no. 0-30502

JOHN D. OIL AND GAS COMPANY
(Exact name of Small Business Issuer as specified in its charter)

MARYLAND 94-6542723
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (LR.S. Employer Identification Na.)

8500 STATION STREET, SUITE 345, MENTOR, OHIO 44060
{Address of principal executive office)

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (440) 255-6325

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{b) of the Exchange Act: NONE
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
Check whether the Issuer is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act [ ]

Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during
the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has
been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No[]

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent filers in response to Item 405 of regulation S-B contained in this form,
and no disclosure will be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information state-
ments incorporated by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-KSB or any amendment to this Form 10-KSB. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)
Yes[ ] NolX]

Issuer’s revenues for its most recent fiscal year were $3,321,421.

State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by
reference to the price at which the common equity was sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common
equity, as of a specified date within the past 60 days.

On March 8, 2008, the aggregate market value was $2,647,748 computed as the average bid and asked price of $.60
per share times the total shares held by non-affiliates of 4,412,913

The Issuer had 9,019,015 shares of common stock outstanding on March 5, 2008.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June
4, 2008 are incorporated by reference into Part III of this 10-KSB.

Transitional Small Business Disclosure Format. Yes [ ] No [X]

John D. Qil & Gas Company
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PARTI
Glossary of Terms

As commonly used in the natural gas and oil industry and
as used in this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, the follow-
ing terms have the following meanings:

Bbl. One stock tank barrel or 42 U.S. gallons liquid volume.

Development well. A well drilled within the proved area of
a natural gas or oil reservoir to the depth of a stratigraphic
horizon known to be productive.

Developed acres. Acres spaced or assigned to productive
wells.

Dry hole or well. A well found to be incapable of producing
hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that proceeds
from the sale of such production would exceed production
expenses and taxes.

Field. An area consisting of a single reservoir or multiple
reservoirs all grouped on or related to the same individual
geological structure feature and [ or stratigraphic condition.

Gross acres or gross wells. The total acres or wells, as the
case may be, in which a working interest is owned.

Mcf. One thousand cubic feet.

Mcfe. One thousand cubic feet equivalent, determined using
the ratio of six Mcf of natural gas to one Bbl of crude oil,
condensate or natural gas liquids.

Net acres or net wells. The sum of the fractional working
interests owned in gross acres or gross wells, as the case
may be.

Oil. Crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids.

Productive well. A well that is found to be capable of pro-
ducing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that pro-
ceeds from the sale of such production exceeds production
expenses and taxes.

Proved developed reserves. Reserves that can be expected
to be recovered through existing wells with existing equip-
ment and operating methods. Additional natural gas and oil
expected to be obtained through the application of fluid
injection or other improved recovery techniques for supple-
menting the natural forces and mechanisms of primary
recovery are included in “proved developed reserves” only
after testing by a pilot project or after the operation of an
installed program has confirmed through production
response that increased recovery will be achieved.

Proved reserves. Proved natural gas and oil reserves are the
estimated quantities of natural gas, natural gas liquids and
crude oil which geological and engineering data demon-
strate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions, i.e. prices and costs as of the date the
estimate is made. Prices include consideration of changes in
existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements,
but not on escalations based on future conditions.

Proved undeveloped drilling location. A site on which a
development well can be drilled consistent with spacing
rules for purposes of recovering proved undeveloped
reserves.

Proved undeveloped reserves or PUDs. Reserves that are
expected to be recovered from new wells on undrilled
acreage or from existing wells where a relatively major
expenditure is required for recompletion. Reserves on
undrilled acreage are limited to those drilling units offsetting
productive units that are reasonably certain of production
when drilled. Proved reserves for other undrilled units are
claimed only where it can be demonstrated with certainty
that there is continuity of production from the existing pro-
ductive formation. Estimates for proved undeveloped
reserves are not attributed to any acreage from which an
application of fluid injection or other improved recovery
techniques is contemplated, unless such techniques have
been proved effective by actual tests in the area and in the
Same Teservoir.

Reservoir. A porous and permeable underground formation
containing a natural accumulation of produce-able natural
gas and/or oil that is confined by impermeable rock or
water barriers and is individual and separate from other
reserves.

Standardized Measure. Standardized Measure is the present
value of estimated future net revenues to be generated from
the production of proved reserves, determined in accordance
with the rules and regulations of the SEC (using prices and
costs in effect as of the date of estimation) without giving
effect to non-property related expenses such as general and
administrative expense, debt service and future income tax
expenses or to depreciation, depletion and amortization and
discounted using an annual discount rate of 10%. Our
Standardized Measure does not include future income tax
expenses.

Successful well. A well capable of producing natural gas
and/ or oil in commercial quantities.

Undeveloped acreage. Lease acreage on which wells have
not been drilled or completed to a point that would permit
the production of commercial quantities of natural gas and
oil regardless of whether such acreage contains proved
reserves.

Working interest. The operating interest that gives the
owner the right to drill, produce and conduct operating
activities on the property and a share of production.

Workover. Operations on a producing well to restore or
increase production.

John D. Qil & Gas Company
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ftiem 1. Descrintion of Business

John D. Oil and Gas Company, formerly Liberty Self-Stor, Inc.
(the “Company”), is a corporation organized under the laws
of the State of Maryland. In 1999, the Company succeeded to
the business of Meridian Point Realty Trust ‘83. Meridian
was a California business trust that commenced operation in
1983. Meridian was originally known as “Sierra Real Estate
Equity Trust "83,” changing its name in 1991.

In 1999, the stockholders elected trustees and approved cet-
tain proposals including, but not limited to, approval of the
reincorporation of Meridian into the Company, a perpetual-
life REIT, and the formation of an operating partnership, LSS |
Limited Partnership (“LSS”), a Delaware limited partnership,
with the members of Liberty Self-Stor, Ltd., an Chio limited
liability company (the “Ohio LLC"). The members of the
Ohio LLC consisted of Richard M. Osborne, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Thomas ]. Smith, the
former President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company, and Retirement Management Company, an Chio
corporation owned by Mr. Osborne.

Each member of the Ohio LLC exchanged their membership
interests for Class A limited parinership interests in LSS,
resulting in LSS being the sole member of the Ohio LLC. The
Company contributed its net assets, primarily cash and
investments, to LSS in exchange for the sole general partner
interest therein and Class B limited partnership interests. The
Class A limited partnership interests are redeemable for cash
or, at the election of the Company, convertible into shares of
the Company’s stock based on an exchange factor. The cur-
rent exchange factor is 1377148 of a share for each unit. The
Class B limited partnership interests are not entitled to
redemption, conversion or a preferred return. At December
31, 2007, the Company and the former members of the Chio
LLC had 29.9% and 70.1% equity interests in LSS, respective-
ly, and operated one self-storage facility located in Painesville,
Ohio. During April 2005, the Company sold 18 self-storage
facilities and in May 2007, the Company sold one of the two
remaining self-storage facilities. Because LSS's losses reduced
the initial investment by the minority interest to a receivable,
the Company wrote-off the minority interest in 2006 as it was
deemed not to be collectible,

In conjunction with the name change from Liberty Self-Stor,
Inc. to John D. Qil and Gas Company on June 27, 2005, the
Company approved a change to its business plan to permit it
to enter into the business of extracting and producing cil and
natural gas products. The Company is actively drilling oil
and natural gas wells in Northeast Ohio. The Company cur-
rently has forty two producing wells. The Company can not
guarantee success under the new business plan as drilling
wells for oil and natural gas is a high-risk enterprise and there
it no guarantee the Company will become profitable.

Dliscontinued Operations.

Cn May 21, 2007, the Company completed the sale of its self-
storage facility located in Gahanna, Ohio pursuant to the
Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) among

Liberty Self-Storage, LTD. (the trade name of the Company),
Columbus Tile Yard, LLC and Buckeye Storage of Gahanna
LLC, or its nominee, for the purchase price of $1,400,000. The
assets of the Gahanna, Ohio self-storage facility consisted pri-
marily of property and equipment with a net book value of
approximately $924,000. The liabilities consisted primarily of
a mortgage of approximately $708,000. The original purchase
price was reduced by $50,000 pursuant to an amendment to
the Agreement in December 2006. $150,000 of the purchase
price was allocated to Columbus Tile Yard for the vacant land
that it owned. Richard M. Osborne, the Company’s
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, is the
owner of Columbus Tile Yard.

The Company's results of operations have been restated to
reclassify the net earnings of the self-storage facility sold as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Operating Partnership.

The partnership is the entity through which the Company
conducts substantially all of its self-storage business and
owns substantially all of its self-storage assets, either directly
or through subsidiaries. The Company manages the affairs of
the operating partnership by directing the affairs of the
Company as general partner of the operating partnership.
The Company’s general partnership interests and Class B lim-
ited partnership interests entitle it to share in cash distribu-
tions from, and in the profits and losses of, the operating part-
nership in proportion to its percentage interest therein and
entitle the Company to vote on all matters requiring a vote of
the limited partners. The Company plans to make all future
transactions of self-storage facilities through the operating
partnership and extracting and producing oil and natural gas
products through the Company or other partnerships or enti-
ties that may be formed as subsidiaries of the Company.

Qil and Natural Gas Overview.

The Company had redirected its efforts to oil and natural gas
exploration in 2006 to increase cash flow and enhance share-
holder value. At December 31, 2007, the Company had forty
two wells in production. The Company’s wells are mostly
operator-owned by John D. Oil and Gas Company, although
there are a limited number of joint interest wells. The new
wells in 2007 were drilled largely during the last half of the
year. We are also an owner and the managing member of
Kykuit Resources, LLC, which owns a 75% interest in natural
gas and oil rights located in the Montana Breaks area of
Montana.

Oil and Natural Gas Competition.

The industry is intensely competitive, and we compete with
other companies that have significantly greater resources.
Our ability to acquire additional properties and to discover
reserves in the future will be dependent upon our ability to
evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate
transactions in a highly competitive environment. Many of
our larger competitors not only drill for and produce natural

John D. Qil & Gas Company
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Item 1. Description of Business (continued)

gas and oil, but also carry on refining operations and market
petroleum and other products on a regional, national or
worldwide basis. These companies may be able to pay more
for natural gas and oil properties and evaluate, bid for and
purchase a greater number of properties than our financial or
human resources permit. In addition, these companies may
have a greater ability to continue drilling activities during
periods of low natural gas and oil prices and to absorb the
burden of present and future federal, state, local and other
laws and regulations. Qur inability to compete effectively
with larger companies could have a material adverse impact
on our business activities, financial condition and results of
operations.

Oil and Natural Gas Environmental and Other Regulations.

The oil and natural gas business is regulated extensively

at the federal, state and local levels. Environmental and other
governmental laws and regulations have increased

the costs to plan, design, drill, install, operate and abandon
natural gas and oil wells. Under these laws and regulations,
industry participants could be liable for personal injuries,
property damage and other damages. These laws and
regulations may:

* require the acquisition of various permits before
drilling commences;

* require the installation of expensive pollution
control equipment;

» restrict the types, quantities and concentration of
various substances that can be released into the
environment in connection with drilling and
production activities;

¢ limit or prohibit drilling activities on lands lying
within wilderness, wetland and other protected areas;

* require remedial measures to prevent pollution from for-
mer operations, such as pit closure and plugging
of abandoned wells;

* impose substantial liabilities for pollution resulting
from operations; and

« with respect to operations affecting federal lands or
leases, require preparation of a Resource Management
Plan, an Environmental Assessment, and/or an
Environmental Impact Statement.

Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could
result in the suspension or termination of operations and sub-
ject companies to administrative, civil and criminal penalties.
Moreover, public interest in environmental protection has
increased in recent years, and environmental organizations
have opposed, with some success, certain drilling projects.

The environmental laws and regulations applicable to the
Company and its operations include, among others, the
following United States federal laws and regulations:

* Clean Air Act, and its amendments, which governs
air emissions;

» Clean Water Act, which governs discharges to waters
of the United States;

» Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act, which imposes
liability where hazardous releases have occurred or
are threatened to occur;

* Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007, which
prescribes new fuel economy standards and other
energy saving measures;

* National Environmental Policy Act, which governs

oil and gas production activities on federal lands;

» Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, which
governs the management of solid waste;

* Safe Drinking Water Act, which governs the
underground injection and disposal of wastewater; and

* US. Department of Interior regulations, which impose
liability for pollution cleanup and damages.

On the state level, significant change in the Ohio oil and
natural gas industry occurred in September 2004. House bill
278 became the effective law of Ohio, which recognizes the
Chio Division of Mineral Resources Management, or
“DMRM,” as the sole and exclusive authority to regulate the
permitting, location and spacing of oil and gas wells. The
result is the effective elimination of township and municipal
regulation that significantly disrupted new oil and natural gas
development. The change streamlines previously cumber-
some permitting and regulation imposed by townships and
municipalities, since a centralized agency, the DMRM now
handles all permitting and enforces the laws regulating
drilling and producing activities.

Self-Storage Overview.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company owned and operated
one self-storage facility consisting of 31,660 square feet of
inside rentable storage and 21,085 square feet of office and
retail space, situated in Painesville, Ohio.

Self-Starage Competition.

The facility competes with a variety of other self-storage com-
panies, including national, regional and local companies. The
facility has at least two other self-storage facilities within a
five mile radius. Many of the Company’s competitors are
larger and have substantially greater financial resources than
the Company. Local competition has the effect of keeping
both occupancy and rental rates down. If competition increas-
es, the Company could experience a decrease in its existing
occupancy levels and rental rates, which could decrease the
cash available for distribution.

In addition, as has happened recently in markets across the
country, the self-storage industry has at times experienced
overbuilding in response to perceived increases in demand.
Continued overbuilding might cause the Company to experi-
ence a decrease in occupancy levels, limit the Company’s abil-
ity to increase rents, and compel the Company to offer dis-
counted rents.

John D. Oil & Gas Company
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Item 1. Description of Business (continued)

Self-Storage Environmental and Other Regulation.

The Company is subject to federal, state and local environ-
mental regulations that apply generally to the ownership of
real property and the operation of self-storage facilities. The
Company has not received any notice from any governmen-
tal authority or private party of any material environmental
noncompliance, claim or liability in connection with the self-
storage facility. The Company is not aware of any environ-
mental condition with respect to the self-storage facility that
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

Under various federal, state, and local environmental laws,

a current or previous owner or operator of real property may
be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of haz-
ardous or toxic substances on, under or in the property.
These laws often impose liability whether or not the owner
or operator caused or knew of the presence of hazardous or
toxic substances and whether or not the storage of such sub-
stances violated a tenant’s lease. The Company prohibits the
storage of hazardous or toxic substances in its lease agree-
ments with its tenants; however, the Company is not in a
position to know what a tenant stores at its self-storage facili-
ty. In addition, the presence of hazardous or toxic sub-
stances, or the failure to remediate such property, may
adversely affect the owner or operator’s ability to use the
contaminated property as collateral in connection with bor-
rowing money. In connection with the ownership of the self-
storage facility, the Company may be potentially liable for
any cleanup costs.

The Company conducted a Phase I environmental audit for
the self-storage facility when it was acquired that did not
reveal any need for remediation.

The Company’s self-storage facility is also generally subject
to the same types of local regulations governing other real
property, including zoning ordinances. The Company
believes that the self-storage facility is in substantial compli-
ance with all such regulations,

Subsequent Events.

In February 2008, we sold 650 shares of our newiy-author-
ized Series A convertible preferred stock in a private place-
rnent for $100,000 per share. For additional information,
please see Note 14 “Subsequent Events” of our notes to con-
solidated financial statements.

Principal Offices.
The Company’s principal executive offices are located at

8500 Station Street, Suite 345, Mentor, Ohio 44060 and its
telephone number is 440-255-6325.

Federal Income Tax.

The change in the Company’s business plan resulted in the
loss of the Company’s REIT status in 2006. The Company’s
Eoard of Directors determined that it was in the best inter-
ests of the Company to terminate the REIT status effective
January 1, 2006. The Company after this date became a “C”

Corporation for tax purposes.
Employees.

The Company currently employs nine full-time and one
part-time employee, including one on-site manager. None of
the Company’s employees are covered by a collective bar-
gaining agreement. The Company considers its employee
relations to be excellent.

ltem 1R. Risk Factors

Risks Related to Qur Oil and Natural Gas Business
Our Revenues will depend on natural gas prices.

Our revenue, profitability and cash flow depend upon the
prices and demand for natural gas. The natural gas market
is very volatile and a drop in prices could significantly affect
our financial results and impede our growth. Developments
in federal regulation pertaining to the sale, transportation
and marketing of natural gas also will continue to impact
future pricing and natural gas contracts.

The price we receive for our natural gas production will be
determined by the availability of favorable purchase con-
tracts, market forces, as well as short and long-term volume
commitments, Qur current plan will be to analyze available
markets, with consideration of both price and terms, and to
enter into those arrangements we believe to be in the best
interest of the Company. We believe market fluctuations can
be partly stabilized by effectively combining long-term gas
purchase agreements and spot market sales. We expect that
we will be able to sell all natural gas produced from our
wells to either utility companies, marketing affiliates of
pipeline companies, natural gas marketing firms, or a variety
of industrial or commercial consumers of natural gas.
However, we cannot guarantee our strategy will be effective.

Natural gas markets are subject to many factors.

The deliverability and price of natural gas are subject to sup-
ply and demand market forces as well as the effects of state
and federal regulatory policies and developments. Prices for
natural gas may fluctuate widely in response to relatively
minor changes in the supply of and demand for natural gas,
market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors that
are beyond our control, such as:

* the domestic and foreign supply of and demand
for natural gas;

» the price and level of foreign imports;

* the level of consumer product demand;

» weather conditions;

* overall domestic and global economic conditions;

¢ political and economic conditions in natural gas and oil
producing countries, including those in the Middle East
and South America;

* the ability of members of the Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries to agree to and maintain oil price
and production controls;

* the impact of the U.S. dollar exchange rates on natural
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Item 1A. Risk Factors (continued)

gas and oil prices;
+ technological advances affecting energy consumption;
* domestic and foreign governmental regulations
and taxation;
» the impact of energy conservation efforts;
¢ the proximity and capacity of natural gas pipelines and
other transportation facilities; and
» the price and availability of alternative fuels.

Prices received for natural gas produced in the Appalachian
Basin are generally higher than national averages due to the
proximity to markets in the Northeast but remain subject to

the seasonal market forces. In the past, the prices of natural

gas have been extremely volatile, and we expect this volatili-
ty to continue.

Locations that we decide to drill may not be productive.

The cost of drilling, completing and operating a well is often
uncertain, and cost factors can adversely affect the econom-
ics of a well. Our efforts will be uneconomic if we drill dry
holes or wells that are productive but do not produce
enough to be commeraally viable after drilling, operating
and other costs. These wells may need to be written-down.
The Company expects to conduct its drilling programs in the
Appalachian Basin into sandstone formations of the Clinton
group and similar formations. These formations frequently
are characterized by low permeability, rapid production
decline assuming unrestricted production, and other geologi-
cal characteristics which may limit the profit potential of
wells drilled to these target formations. Although many
wells drilled to these formations are completed, it is possible
for a productive well to provide an amount of revenue
which is insufficient to return the costs incurred in drilling
and completing the well.

Shortages of drilling rigs, equipment and crews could delay
our operations and reduce our revertues.

Higher natural gas prices generally increase the demand for
drilling rigs, equipment and crews and can lead to shortages
of, and increasing costs for, drilling equipment, services and
personnel. Shortages of, or increasing costs for, experienced
drilling crews and oil field equipment and services could
restrict our ability to drill the wells and conduct the opera-
tions which we currently have planned. Any delay in the
drilling of new wells or significant increase in drilling costs
could reduce our revenues.

Actual quantities and present value of our proved reserves
may prove to be lower than we have estimated.

This report contains estimates of our proved reserves and
the estimated future net revenue from our proved reserves.
Determining these estimates is a complex process with esti-
mates based upon various assumptions relating to review
and decisions about engineering and geological data for
each well.

Qur development operations require substantial capital
expenditures.

The natural gas and oil industry is capital intensive. We
make and expect to continue to make substantial capital
expenditures in our business for the development, produc-
tion and acquisition of natural gas reserves. We have
financed capital expenditures primarily with equity infu-
sions from existing investors, cash flow from operations and
proceeds from loans. We cannot guarantee that these
sources of funds will be adequate to fund our capital needs.

We face significant competition.

The natural gas and oil industry is intensely competitive,
and we compete with other companies that have significant-
ly greater resources. Our ability to acquire additional prop-
erties and to discover reserves in the future will be depend-
ent upon our ability to evaluate and select suitable properties
and to consummate transactions in a highly competitive
environment. Many of our larger competitors not only drill
for and produce natural gas and oil, but also carry on refin-
ing operations and market petroleum and other products on
a regional, national or worldwide basis. These companies
may be able to pay more for natural gas and oil properties
and evaluate, bid for and purchase a greater number of
properties than our financial or human resources permit. In
addition, these companies may have a greater ability to con-
tinue drilling activities during periods of low natural gas
and oil prices and to absorb the burden of present and future
federal, state, local and other laws and regulations. Our
inability to compete effectively with larger companies could
have a material adverse impact on our business activities,
financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on a third party to manage our business.

We have an agreement with Great Plains Exploration, LLC
{“Great Plains”) to manage our oil and natural gas opera-
tions. Great Plains is owned by Richard M. Osborne, our
Chairman and CEO. Great Plains assists in the drilling
process, tends our wells, transports our natural gas and pur-
chases and resells our production as well. If Great Plains
fails to provide us with these services, or if the timeliness
and quality of Great Plains’ services are not adequate, our
business would be negatively impacted.

Our business depends on gathering and transportation
facilities owned by others.

The marketability of our natural gas production depends in
part on the availability, proximity and capacity of gathering
and pipeline systems owned by third parties. The amount of
natural gas that can be produced and sold is subject to cur-
tailment in certain circumstances, such as pipeline interrup-
tions due to scheduled and unscheduled maintenance, exces-
sive pressure, physical damage to the gathering or trans-
portation system, or lack of contracted capacity in the sys-
tem. The curtailments arising from these and similar circum-
stances may last from a few days to several months. To the
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item 1A. Risk Factors (continued)

extent that the Company’s wells are shut-in, even temporari-
ly, revenues otherwise available to the Company will be
reduced accordingly.

We depend on a key customer for sales of our natural gas.

We sell all of our natural gas production to Great Plains,
which in turn sells a significant portion of our production
volume to a limited number of customers. To the extent
these customers reduce the volume of natural gas that they
purchase from Great Plains, we might not be able to advan-
tageously sell all of our production,

Our business is hazardous.

Hazards such as geological unconformities, unexpected pres-
sures and other unforeseen conditions are sometimes
encountered in drilling wells. On occasion, substantial liabil-
ities to third parties or governmental entities may be
incurred, the payment of which could reduce funds available
for drilling, resulting in the loss of properties of the
Company. We may be subjected to liability for pollution and
other damages or may lose a significant portion of our prop-
erties due to hazards against which we cannot insure or may
not elect to insure because of prohibitive premium costs or
for other reasons., Government regulations relating to envi-
ronmental matters also could increase our costs of doing
business or require us to cease operations in certain areas.
We will require an independent drilling contractor to insure
against hazards and other risks normally encountered in its
business. However, there can be no assurance as to the
extent and the cost of such coverage. An uninsured claim
against us could reduce our capital significantly or cause us
to alter or terminate our drilling program.

The oil and natural gas industry is highly regulated.

Our operations are regulated extensively at the federal, state
and local levels. Environmental and other governmental
laws and regulations have increased the costs to plan,
design, drill, install, operate and abandon natural gas and oil
wells. Under these laws and regulations, we could also be
liabte for personal injuries, property damage and other dam-
ages. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations
could result in the suspension or termination of our opera-
tions and subject us to administrative, civil and criminal
penalties. Moreover, public interest in environmental
protection has increased in recent years, and environmental
organizations have opposed, with some success, certain
drilling projects.

Risks Related to the Self-Storage Facility Business

These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:

» the Company’s ability to increase occupancy and rental
rates at its self-storage facility;

¢ the ability to refinance the Company’s debt on its self-stor-
age facility as it becomes due, including, without limitation,
the Company’s maturing long-term debt;

» changes in local real estate conditions;
* decreases in occupancy rates; and

¢ the Company'’s ability to sell the facility, if business and
time warrant in the future.

Risks Related to the Company

We need to raise additional capital, which may not be
available to us and may limit our operations or growth.

We need additional capital to fund the implementation of
our business plan. We cannot assure you that any necessary
subsequent financing will be successful. The Company’s
future liquidity and capital requirements are difficult to pre-
dict as they depend upon many factors, including the suc-
cess of its drilling operations and competing market devel-
opments. We may need to raise additional funds in order to
meet working capital requirements or additional capital
expenditures or to take advantage of other opportunities.
We cannot be certain that the Company will be able to obtain
additional financing on favorable terms or at all. If we are
unable to raise needed capital, our growth and operations
may be impeded. In addition, if we raise additional capital
by selling additional shares of common or preferred stock,
your percentage ownership in the Company will be diluted.

We may not be able to repay or refinance our maturing debt.

If the Company determines to refinance or retire any of its
maturing debt, there can be no assurance that the Company
will be able to do so. Our cash flow from operating activities
is currently not sufficient to retire our debt as it matures. In
addition, a significant portion of our debt is held by a related
party and is due on demand. If adequate funds are not
available or not available on acceptable terms, the
Company’s business and results of operations would be
materially and adversely affected and the Company may be
unable to continue to fund its operations or growth or
acquire additional properties or to meet its obligations.

We have a limited history of operating the oil and natural
gas assets we have acquired.

In considering whether to invest in the Company, you
should consider that we commenced our oil and gas opera-
tions in January 2006 and there is only limited historical
financial and operating information available on which to
base your evaluation of our performance. We may fail to
implement our business model and strategy successfully or
revise our business model and strategy should industry con-
ditions and the competition within the industry change.

Our management team owns a controlling interest in the
Company.

Richard M. Osbome, our Chairman and CEQ, and Thomas J.
Smith, former president and current board member, own or
control an aggregate 39.0% of our outstanding shares, 49.9%
if their partnership units were converted into shares.
Accordingly, management possesses a near controlling vote
on all matters submitted to a vote of our shareholders and
has the ability to elect all members of our board of directors
and to control our management and affairs. This concentra-
tion of ownership may have the effect of preventing or dis-
couraging transactions involving an actual or a potential
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ltem 1A Risk Factors (continued).

change of control of our Company, regardless of whether a
premium is offered over then-current market prices.

Our management team is subject to various conflicts
of interest.

Creat Plains, a company owned by Richard M. Osborne, our
Chairman and CEQ, manages our oil and natural gas busi-
ness and purchases all of our natural gas production. In
turn, Great Plains sells a portion of our natural gas to Orwell
Natural Gas Company, a public utility that is also owned by
Mr. Osborne. Great Plains has also loaned $3.8 million to us
to fund our operations. We lease our executive offices from
OsAir, Inc., a company owned by Mr. Osborne. Mr. Osborne
is the sole manager of Liberty Self-Stor 1I, Ltd., which makes
trucks available for short-term rental to the public at our self-
storage facility and also provides other merchandise at this
facility. These arrangements create inherent conflicts of inter-
est, although we believe that the terms we receive from Mr.
Osborne’s companies are competitive with those we would
receive from unaffiliated companies. In addition, members
of our management team are participating in other oil and
natural gas drilling enterprises or other organizations or
associations formed for the development of oil and natural
gas properties, some of which may be competitive with the
Company. John D. may compete with these other companies
for drill sites and customers to purchase their products, cre-
ating further conflicts of interest. Management is not restrict-
ed in the conduct of any of these additional activities, No
specific method for the resolution of these or other conflicts
of interest has been devised.

If we fail to develop or maintain an effective system of
internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report
our financial results or prevent fraud.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. We cannot be cer-
tain that our efforts to develop and maintain our internal
controls will be successful, that we will be able to maintain
adequate controls over our financial processes and reporting
in the future or that we will be able to comply with our obli-
gations under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Any failure to develop or maintain effective internal controls,
or difficulties encountered in implementing or improving
our internal controls, could harm our operating results or
cause us to fail to meet certain reporting obligations.
Ineffective internal controls could also cause investors

to lose confidence in our reported financial information,
which could have a negative effect on the trading price

of our shares.

{tem 2. Descrintion of Property

0il and Natural Gas Wells

At December 31, 2007, the Company had forty two wells in
production. During 2006, our first year of production, the
Company had twenty one wells in production. The wells
are mostly operator-owned by John D. Oil and Gas
Company, although there are a limited number of joint inter-
ests. These wells are located in Northeast Ohio.

Additionally there were no estimates of total proved net oil
or natural gas reserves filed with or included in reports to
any other federal authority or agency during 2007 or 2006.

The following table presents the net oil and natural gas pro-
duction, net sales, average sale price and average unit costs

Net Production
2007 2006
Natural Gas (Mcf) 349,997 165,561
Oil (BBL) 3,715 1,016
Natural Gas
Equivalent (Mcfe) 372,287 171654

Natural Gas $2,730,840 $1,312,457
0Oil 198,519 52,040
Total Sales % 2,929,359 $ 1,364,497
Auerage Sale Price
Natural Gas (Mcf) $7.80 $7.93
(il (BBL) $53.44 $51.25
Natural Gas
Equivalent (Mcfe} $7.87 $7.95
fiverage Unit Costs per Mcle
Well OEPe‘ah“g $ 335,135 $91,439
xpenses
Average Cost/Mcfe $0.90 $ 053

per mcfe for the periods indicated:
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item 2. Description of Property (continued)

Estimated Proved Reserves.

The following table presents the Company’s estimated gross proved oil and natural gas reserves, which are all located in the
continental United States, based on reserve reports prepared by Schlumberger Data and Consulting Services:

Natural Gas (MCF) Oil {(BBLs) Natural Gas (MCF) Qil (BBLs)

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves:

Beginning of year 1,348,600 14,800 - -

Revision of previous estimates,

extensions and other additions 478,380 4,348 1,514,200 15800
Net reserve additions 1,169,002 21,891 - - -

Production (349,997) (3,715} (165,600) (1,000

End of year 2,045,985 37,324 1,348,600 14,800

Proved developed reserves:
Beginning of year 1,348,600 14,800 - -
End of year 2,645 985 37,324 1,348,600 ‘ 14,800

Productive Wells.

The following table presents the information relating to

the productive wells in which we owned a working interest
during the periods indicated. Productive wells consist of - .
producing wells and wells capable of production. The Drilling Activity.

Company’s wells are drilled to produce natural gas with The Company began its drilling activity in 2006,

oil being a by-product. Gross wells are the total number of ~ concentrating its efforts on development properties.
producing wells in which we have an interest, and net wells  The following table presents information relating to

are the sum of our fractional working interests owned in wells completed during the periods indicated.
gross wells.
2007 2006 2007 2006
Operated 37 36 2 20 Productive 21 18 21 20
Non-Operated Dry 5 5 1 1
. 5 2 - -
Properties
2

Total 42 38 n 20 Total 26 » 2 A

Developed and Undeveloped Acreage.

The following presents information relating to developed and undeveloped acreage that the Company currently has leased.
Developed are those properties that are currently drilled and undeveloped acreage relates to lease acres on which wells have not
been drilied or completed.

Developed Acreage Undeveloped Acreage

Geographic Area: Gross Net Gross Net
Ohio 2,138 2,066 5,044 5,044
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ftem 2. Bescription of Property (continued)

Present Activities.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had five additional
drilled wells to be brought on line. Additionally during the
first quarter of 2008, three more wells were drilled.

Leases.

The rights to drill an oil and natural gas well on a parcel of
property are dependent on the producer securing a land
lease for the mineral rights to drill for the oil and natural gas.
Typically the lease agreement will rent the rights to the min-
erals on the property for a specific time frame, varying from
one to ten years. An executed lease with a producer gives
exclusive rights for drilling on the property and another
agreement cannot be signed until it has expired.

Insurance.

The Company has purchased a commercial liability policy to
cover its oil and natural gas activities. The Company’s man-
agement uses its discretion in determining amounts, cover-
age limits and deductibility provisions of insurance, with a
view to acquiring appropriate insurance on the Company’s
investments at a reasonable cost and on suitable terms.

Depreciation.

Development costs of proved oil and natural gas properties,
including estimated dismantlement, restoration and aban-
donment costs and acquisition costs, are depreciated and
depleted on a well by well basis by the units-of-production
method using estimated proved developed reserves.

Self-Storage Facility

As of December 31, 2007, the Company owned and operated
one self-storage facility located in Painesville, Ohio. The
Painesville self-storage facility was acquired in October of
2000 with 31,660 of rentable square footage situated on 3.20
acres including 364 units with outside space available for
parking vehicles. The occupancy rate is 37.47% and the
annual rental rate is $9.00 per square foot at December 31,
2007. The self-storage units are inside and difficult to rent
due to access being limited by using an elevator or stairs. In
addition, Painesville has 21,085 square feet of office and retail
space, with an occupancy rate of 96.7% and an annual rental
rate of $10.11 per square foot at December 31, 2007.

Property Management.

The self-storage facility is operated under the “Liberty Self-
Stor, Ltd.” trade name and has an on-site manager. The
manager reports to the Company’s Vice President of
Operations. The facility is staffed eight hours per day, six
days a week, with client access seven days a week from 6
a.m. to 10 p.m. The facility is located in Painesville, Ohio.

Leases.

Self-storage space at the facility is leased on a monthly basis
using a standard form lease agreement. Attached to each
lease agreement is a lease addendum notifying lessees that
they store goods at their own risk.

Insurance.

[n the opinion of the Company’s management, the self-stor-
age facility is adequately covered by insurance. The facility
has a limit on coverage determined by management and
the Company’s insurance company, and policy carries a
$1,000 deductible. The Company’s responsibility for losses
extends only to the actual property owned by the Company
and not the property of tenants. Tenants are responsible for
insuring theit own belongings stored at the facility. In addi-
tion, the Company maintains title insurance insuring fee title
to the self-storage facility in an aggregate amount believed
to be adequate.

Mortgages.

The Painesville facility is encumbered by a mortgage in the
original amount of $2,062,128, maturing on March 30, 2009.
Monthly principal and interest payments are $16,612, with a
current interest rate of 7.355%, using a 20-year amortization
period. The principal amount of the loan as of December 31,
2007, was $1,386,457.

Depreciation.

Depreciation of fixed assets is computed using the straight-
line method and is based upon useful lives of 25 years for
buildings and improvements and five to seven years for per-
sonal property.

Investment Policy

The Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, may change or
modify the Company’s investment objective. In particular,
with the new business plan, the Company was taxed as a C
Corp in 2007 and 2006 due to entering into the business of
extracting and producing oil and natural gas products.
Additionally, the Company engaged in purchasing invest-
ments in 2006, held as available for sale securities, which
were sold in 2007.

Activities of the Company. Subject to Maryland law, the
Company has the ability to:

* issue senjor securities;

* borrow money;

¢ make loans;

» underwrite securities of other issuers;

* engage in the purchase or sale of investments;

» offer securities in exchange for property;

» repurchase or otherwise reacquire its shares or other
securities; and

« provide annual reports and other reports to stockholders
which contain annual audited financial statements.

The Company could borrow money necessary to acquire
properties, could offer preferred senior securities, could offer
interests of the operating partnership in exchange for proper-
ties, and make annual reports with audited financial state-
ments. The Company has no current plans to engage in any
of the other listed activities. During each of the last three
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item 2. Description of Property tcontinued)

years, the Company filed annual and quarterly reports with
the SEC. The Company’s ability to engage in any of the
above activities is subject to change without the approval of
stockholders.

Investment Strategy. The Company previously focused on the
acquisition, expansion and development of a portfolio of
self-storage facilities. After the sale of significantly all of its
self-storage facilities in April 2005, the Company decided to
capitalize on other investment opportunities to increase
shareholder value. The Board of Directors approved redi-
recting the Company’s focus to the oil and natural gas busi-
ness. The name was changed and the Company positioned
itself for the business plan change that commenced fully in
2006. The Company plans to pay for its current and future
plans with cash, debt, the issuance of debt securities, the sale
of equity securities and funds from operations.

item 3. Legal Proceedings.

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which
the Company is a party or to which any of its assets are sub-
ject. Therefore, the Company does not believe that any
pending proceedings will have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial condition, liquidity or results of
operation.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Yote of
Seeurity Holders.

None.

item 5. Market for Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer’s Purchases of
Equity Securities.

Market Information.

The Company’s shares of common stock, $0.001 par value
per share, trade on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board
Market, or OTCBB, under the

symbol “JDOG.”

The table to the right sets forth the high and low closing sale
prices as reported on the OTCBB for the Company’s com-
mon stock for each quarter within the Company’s last two
fiscal years. Because the Company’s common stock is trad-
ed on the OTCBB, these quotations reflect inter-dealer prices,
without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission, and
may not represent actual transactions.

Record Holders.

As of March 5, 2008, the Company’s shares of common stock
were held of record by approximately 1,721 shareholders.
This number does not include the

number of persons who hold stock in nominee or “street
name” accounts through brokers or banks.

Dividends.
No dividends were paid to the Company’s stockholders in

2007 and 2006.

In accordance with the Company’s organizational docu-
ments, dividend distributions are at the discretion of the
Company’s directors. The Company has no current plans to
pay dividends and instead intends to reinvest any profits in
the Company.

Issuance of Commeon Stock.

In December of 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted five of its outside board members 4,167 shares of
common stock valued at $0.60 per share. The total shares
awarded of 20,835 were issued as partial compensation for
their board participation.

During 2006, the Company had several instances where
stock was issued. A private placement offering in the first
half of 2006 sold 2.2 million shares to two board members
and 2.6 million shares to private investors. The proceeds
received from these private placements were used for gener-
al corporate purposes and costs associated with the
Company’s oil and natural gas production business.

Purchases of Common Stock.

The Company did not purchase any shares of its common
stock in 2007 or 2006.

The information relating to the Equity Compensation Plan is
incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's defini-
tive Proxy Statement, relating to its 2008 Annual Meeting
(“Proxy Statement”), under the caption “Equity
Compensation.” The Proxy Statement will be filed with the

First Quarter $0.65 $0.52
Second Quarter $0.75 $0.30
Third Quarter 1.0 $0.55
Fourth Quarter $0.90 $0.60

—

First Quarter $1.00
Second Quarter $0.80 $0.60
Third Quarter $1.20 $0.61
Fourth Quarter $0.80 50,52

SEC no later than April 30, 2008.

item 6. Management's Discussion and Anatysis
or Plan of Operation
John D. Oil and Gas Company, formerly Liberty Self-Stor,
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Inc. (the “Company”), is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Maryland. The Company owned and oper-
ated twenty self-storage facilities until April 2005 when it sold
eighteen of its self-storage facilities to U-Store-It. After the sale,
on June 27, 2005, the Company changed its name from Liberty
Self-Stor, Inc. to John D. Oil and Gas Company.

Shortly thereafter, the Company approved a change to its busi-
ness plan to permit it to enter into the business of extracting
and producing oil and natural gas products. During May 2007,
the Company sold a self- storage facility located in Gahanna,
Ohio. The Company currently has two segments: one com-
posed of the remaining self-storage facility located in
Painesville, Ohio and one that is actively drilling oil and natu-
ral gas wells in Northeast Ohio.

The Company can not guarantee success under the new busi-
ness plan as drilling wells for oil and natural gas is a high-risk
enterprise and there is no guarantee the Company will become
profitable.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condi-
tion and results of operations are based upon its consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The preparation of these consclidated finan-
cial statements requires the Company to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabil-
ities, revenues, costs and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, the
Company evaluates all of these estimates, including those relat-
ed to the provision for possible losses, deferred tax assets and
liabilities, depreciation and depletion, and certain accrued lia-
bilities. We base our estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that we believe reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for mak-
ing judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Principles of Consolidation

Pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement of LSS, the
Company, as sole general partner, controls LSS. Accordingly,
the Company accounts for its investment in LSS utilizing the
consolidation method. Our investment in an unconsolidated
affiliate, Kykuit Resources LLC (“Kykuit,”} is accounted for
using the equity method. All significant inter-company trans-
actions and balances have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company maintains cash at various financial institutions
which, at times, may exceed federally insured amounts and
may significantly exceed balance sheet amounts due to out-
standing checks. The Company considers highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable, arising from the
self-storage business, are due from individuals as well as
business entities. Tenants are required to pay their rent on

the first of each month. Past due amounts are those that are
outstanding longer than the contractual payment terms.

If an account is more than 75 days past due, the Company gen-
erally writes off the balance directly to expense. For such past
due accounts, the Company has the right to auction the con-
tents of the rented space, which allows for recovery of written-
off balances. Any such recoveries are credited to income when
received.

The Company has certain trade receivables consisting of oil
and natural gas sale obligations due under normal trade terms.
The Company currently sells its production to a related party
through an oil and natural gas agreement, extending credit on
an unsecured basis to them. In evaluating its allowance for
possible losses, the Company performs a review of outstanding
receivables. The trade receivables outstanding are typically
three months of natural gas production due to the timing and
accounting treatment by the main distribution pipeline compa-
ny in Northeast Ohio. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s
credit evaluation indicated that it has no need for an allowance
for possible losses.

Property and Equipment

All property and equipment is depreciated using the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives of twenty five years for
buildings and improvements and five to seven years for furni-
ture and equipment.

The Company uses the successful efforts method of accounting
for oil and natural gas producing activities. Under this
method, acquisition costs for proved and unproved properties
are capitalized when incurred. Exploration costs, including
geotogical and geophysical costs, the costs of carrying and
retaining unproved properties and exploratory dry hole
drilling costs, are expensed. Development costs, including the
costs to drill and equip development wells and successful
exploratory drilling costs to locate proved reserves, are capital-
ized. Upon sale or retirement of a proved property, the cost
and accumulated depreciation and depletion and ameortizations
are eliminated from property accounts and the resultant gain or
loss is recognized.

Exploratory drilling costs are capitalized when incurred pend-
ing the determination of whether a well has found proved
reserves. If a well is determined to be successful, the capital-
ized drilling costs will be reclassified as part of the cost of the
well. If a well is determined to be unsuccessful, the capitalized
drilling costs will be charged to expense in the period the
determination is made. The Company has some limited partic-
ipation in exploratory drilling.

Development costs of proved oil and natural gas properties,
including estimated dismantlement, restoration, abandonment
costs and acquisition costs, are depreciated and depleted on a
well by well basis by the units-of-production method using
estimated proved developed reserves. The costs of unproved
oil and natural gas properties are periodically assessed for
impairment.

At December 31, 2007, two parcels of land were categorized as
Assets Held for Sale totaling $204,762. This land is adjacent to
one of the self-storage facilities sold to U-Store-It in April 2005.
At December 31, 2007, the Company had entered into an agree-
ment for a possible sale of the land. Subsequently on February
1, 2008, the land was sold to Richard M. Osborne, Chairman of

John D. Oil & Gas Company

20




Item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation [continued)

the Board, for its book value,

Asset Impairment

The Company reviews its self-storage property and capital-
ized well costs for impairment when events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate the carrying amounts of the properties
may not be recoverable. When such conditions exist, man-
agement estimates future cash flows from operations and ulti-
mate disposition of the individual properties. If the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying
amount to the related property’s estimated fair market value
would be recorded and an impairment loss would be recog-
nized.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Company accounts for its asset retirement obligations in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 143, “ Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement requires that
the fair value of an asset retirement obligation be recognized
in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. For the Company, asset retirement
obligations primarily relate to the abandonment, dismantling
and plugging of oil and natural gas wells. The present value
of the esimated asset retirement cost is capitalized as part of
the long-lived asset. The capitalized asset retirement cost is
depreciated and the asset retirement obligation is accreted to
interest expense over the estimated life of the well,

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue from self-storage operations is
derived primarily from monthly rentals of self-storage units.
Rental revenue is recognized in the period the rent is earned
which is typically on a monthly basis.

The Company recognizes revenue from its oil and natural gas
interests in producing wells as oil and natural gas is sold to a
purchaser at a fixed or determinable price when delivery has
occurred, title and risk of loss have transferred to the purchas-
er and the collectability of revenue is reasonably assured. The
Company has a management agreement with a related party
to transport the Company’s natural gas production through
the related party’s pipeline and include this natural gas with
the related party’s natural gas in order to fulfill production
contracts they currently have in place. The actual funds are
typically received within three months due to the accounting
treatment by the main distribution pipeline company in
Northeast Ohio.

Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS™) No.
130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” requires disclosure
of comprehensive income and its components in a full set of
financial statements. Comprehensive income is defined as
changes in shareholders’ equity from non-owner sources and,
for the Company, includes fair market value adjustments to
available for sale securities, in compliance with SFAS No. 133,
as amended.

Stock-Based Compensation

The 1999 Stock Option Plan (“the Plan”), which was
approved by stockholders, permits the grant of non-statutory
stock options (“NSSOs”), incentive stock options (“ISOs” and
together with NSSOs, “options”) and restricted shares. The
Plan was adopted to attract and retain qualified and compe-
tent persons who are key to the Company, including key
employees, officers, and directors. The Plan provides for the
grant to employees of ISOs within the meaning of Section 422
of the Code, for grant of NSS0s to eligible employees (includ-
ing officers and directors) and non-employee directors and
for the grant of restricted share awards. The Company may
grant up to 300,000 options or restricted shares pursuant to
the Plan. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 135,000 stock
options were outstanding. During the second quarter of 2006,
the former President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company was awarded 35,000 restricted shares with a fair
value of $22,750 with compensation expense to be amortized
ratably over a five year vesting period. The compensation
expense recorded for the restricted shares during the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $4,548 and $1,894,
respectively.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based
Payment,” using the modified prospective transition method,
and thus the results of operations for prior periods will not be
restated. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company
applied the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting pre-
scribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”

Income Taxes

Prior to 2006, the Company elected to be taxed as a real estate
investment trust (“REIT”) pursuant to Section 856(c)(1) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The change in
the Company’s business plan to oil and gas production result-
ed in the loss of the Company’s REIT status in 2006.
Therefore, the Company’s Board of Directors determined it
was in the best interest of the Company to terminate the REIT
status effective January 1, 2006. After that date, the Company
became a “C” Corporation for tax purposes.

In establishing a provision for income taxes, the Company
must estimate when in the future certain items will affect tax-
able income. Deferred taxes are recorded for future tax conse-
quences of events that have been recognized in the financial
statements or tax returns, based upon enacted tax laws and
rates. Deferred tax assets are recognized subject

to management’s judgment that realization is more likely
than not.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB} issued Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN No. 48
addresses the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes rec-
ognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
109, “ Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 prescribes
specific criteria for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of the tax effects of a position taken or expected
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to be taken in a tax return. This interpretation also provides
guidance on de-recognition of previously recognized tax
benefits, classification of tax liabilities on the balance sheet,
recording interest and penalties on tax underpayments,
accounting in interim periods, and disclosure requirements.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48 on
January 1, 2007. The implementation of FIN No. 48 did

not have a material effect on the Company’s financial
statements. The Company has net operating loss carry for-
wards (NOLS) and a valuation allowance to offset any tax
effects. The Company has no unrecognized tax benefits and
therefore, there is no anticipated effect on the Company’s
effective tax rate. Any tax penalties or interest expense will
be recognized in income tax expense. No interest and penal-
ties related to unrecognized tax benefits were accrued at
December 31, 2007.

The Company is open to federal and state tax audits untit
the applicable statute of limitations expire. There are cur-
rently no federal or state income tax examinations underway
for the Company. The tax years 2003 through 2006 remain
open to examination by the major taxing jurisdictions in
which we operate, although no material changes to unrecog-
nized tax positions are expected within the next twelve
months. The Company does, however, have prior year net
operating losses which remain open for examination.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company’s financial statements are based on a number
of significant estimates, including reliability of receivables,
selection of useful lives for property and equipment and tim-
ing and costs associated with its retirement obligations.
Estimated oil and natural gas reserve quantities are the basis
for the calculation of depreciation, depletion and impairment
of oil and natural gas properties.

The Company’s oil and natural gas business makes it vulner-
able to changes in wellhead prices of crude oil and natural
gas. Such prices have been volatile in the past and can be
expected to continue to be volatile. Proved reserves are
based on current oil and natural gas prices and estimated
reserves, which is considered a significant estimate by the
Company, and is subject to change.

Cash-flow Restatement

At December 31, 2007, the Company restated the December
31, 2006 financial statements due to the classification of dis-
continued operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is
determined by using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. The Company’s prin-
cdpal financial instruments are cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and long term debt. Cash, accounts receiv-
able and accounts payable, due to their short maturities, and
liquidity, are carried at amounts which reasonably approxi-
mate fair value. Based upon rates available for similar bot-
rowings, the Company’s book value approximated the fair
value of its long-term debt at December 31, 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents the Company'’s ability to generate suffi-
cient amounts of cash to meet its financial commitments,
The Company believes that cash flow from operating and
financing activities will not be sufficient to meet its anticipat-
ed operating and capital expenditure requirements on a
short-term basis as it expands its oil and natural gas opera-
tions. The Company believes that short-term cash flow
needs will be met by selling stock in private placements, bor-
rowing from related parties and partnering the working
interest of future wells as joint ventures. A private place-
ment offering occurred in 2006 and the Company sold pre-
ferred shares in early 2008. As an additional source of lig-
uidity and to manage its interest rate risk, the Company may
attempt to refinance some of its maturing long-term debt in
order to satisfy its obligations and to generate additional
cash to meet its financial commitments in conjunction with
its new business plan.

If the Company determines to refinance or retire any of its
maturing debt, there can be no assurance that the Company
will be able to do so. A significant portion of the Company’s
debt is due on demand. If adequate funds are not available
or not available on acceptable terms, the Company’s busi-
ness and results of operations would be materially and
adversely affected and the Company may be unable to con-
tinue to fund its operations or growth or acquire additional
properties or to meet its obligations.

Long-term liquidity will depend upon the Company's ability
to obtain financing and attain profitable operations. Because
all of the Company’s debt is tied to variable rates, the
Company’s liquidity will also depend on interest rate fluctu-
ations. Refinancing of existing debt or issuance of any new
debt will likely require a personal guarantee of Mr. Osborne,
the Company’s Chairman and CEQO. On September 29, 2006,
the Company and Mr. Osborne entered into an unsecured
loan agreement with Charter One Bank for a one year line of
credit in the amount of $5.0 million. This agreement was
subsequently modified in February 2007 to increase the loan
to $7.5 million and in April 2007 to increase the loan to $9.5
million including a security agreement for substantially all of
the Company’s assets. Additionally during 2007, the
Company borrowed a total of $3.8 million from Great Plains
Exploration, LLC under six promissory notes. This debt is
due on demand. While Mr. Osbome currently personally
guarantees substantially all of the Company’s debt, hé is
under no legal obligation, requirement or agreement to guar-
antee any refinanced or future debt. If Mr. Osborne deter-
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mines not to guarantee refinanced or future debt, the
Company’s business and results of operations would be
materially and adversely affected and the Company may be
unable to continue to fund its operations,

The items affecting operating cash flow and cash and cash
equivalents are discussed more fully in the “Material Changes
in Results of Operations” section.

The Company’s current assets decreased $954,373 or 43.2%, to
$1,252,595 at December 31, 2007 from $2,206,968 at December
31, 2006. Current assets in 2007 were lower than 2006 due to
the sale of assets related to discontinued operations and the
sale of available for sale securities in 2007.

The Company’s current liabilities increased $6,719,203 to
$11,889,246 at December 31, 2007, from $5,170,043 at
December 31, 2006. The increase is largely the result of the
additional borrowings and accounts payable resulting from
the drilling program.

The Company had a positive cash flow from operating activi-
ties of $1,967,869 for the year ended December 31, 2007 com-
pared to a positive cash flow of $431,872 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The increase in cash flow from operating
activities from 2006 to 2007 was largely the result of an
increase in payables and increased profitability from the cur-
rent drilling program,

The Company had a negative cash flow from investing activi-
ties of $7,572,630 for the year ended December 31, 2007 com-
pared to a negative cash flow of $6,567,704 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Both of the cash uses were largely due to
expenditures for drilling new oil and natural gas wells.
During 2007 there were expenditures for the new Kykuit
Resources LLC joint venture and increased expenditures for
oil and natural gas wells, offset by the receipt of funds from
the sale of the Gahanna self-storage facility in May 2007 and
the sale of securities during the second quarter of 2007.

The Company had a positive cash flow from financing activi-
ties of $5,611,348 for the year ended December 31, 2007 com-
pared to a positive cash flow of $5,281,111 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The positive change in 2007 was largely
the result of borrowing on the line of credit and the related
party loan offset by the payoff of the Gahanna self-storage
facility. For the year ended December 31, 2006 the positive
change was largely due to receipt of proceeds from a private
stock offering.

During 2006, the Company had several instances where stock
was issued. A private placement offering in the first half of
2006 sold 2.2 million shares to two board members and 2.6
million shares to private investors. The proceeds received
from these private placements were used for general corpo-
rate purposes and costs associated with the Company’s oil
and natural gas production business.

Additionally, the Company issued 1,102,355 shares of its com-
mon stock to the Richard M. Osborne Trust, for which
Richard M. Osbome is the sole trustee, in satisfaction of the
amount of $683,461 for the outstanding balance on the revolv-
ing demand note dated January 1, 2006, various accounts
payables and accounts receivables.

The following table sets forth the maturity dates and the total
of the Company’s long-term debt and line of credit as of
December 31, 2007, as well as future commitments under the
Company’s office space lease.

Payments Due by Period

[ =
Lelss than 1-3 years] | Total
lyear .

R Y U

' Contractual
Obhgatwns

!
\

T e

! Long-Term Debt | § 100,725 $ 1,285,732 $ 1386457

S

" Line of c:redn"W 5,700,000 —~ 5,700,000
SN

| Note Payable to

LRelate pAns ﬂy | 3,800,000 ~ 3,800,000
[Operatmg Lease*| 16,200 4,050 20,250

['Total Contractual
| Cash Obligations j $9,616925 $ 1,289,782 $ 10,906,707

“The operating lease for office space was renegotiated on
April 1, 2006 with a three year term ending March 2009, at a
rental of $1,350 per month, which is reflected in the above
table.

Material Changes in Results of Operations
Revenues from Continuing Operations

Total revenues from continuing operations and interest
income increased $1,599,471, or 92.9%, to $3,321,421 for the
year ended December 31, 2007, from $1,721,950 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increases are largely the result
of oil and natural gas production occurring from the increase
in drilling producing wells.

Expenses from Continuing Operations

Interest expense from continuing operations increased
$371,757, or 187.8%, to $569,672 for the year ended December
31, 2007 compared to $197,915 for the year ended December
31, 2006. Interest expense increased largely due to additional
borrowing on the line of credit and related party loans
obtained to finance the oil and natural gas operations and the
Kykuit venture.

Property taxes and insurance expenses from continuing oper-
ations decreased $3,916, or 3.3%, to $113,293 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to $117,209 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Property taxes and property insur-
ance decreased in 2007 largely due to an adjustment by the
Lake County Board of Revision to the appraised property
value on the Painesville self-storage property partially offset
by an insurance policy that was taken out to protect the
Company from liability losses relating to the oil and natural
gas business ventures.

Self-storage property operating expenses from continuing
operations increased $3,383, or 3.4%, to $103,123 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to $99,740 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in property operating
expenses was spread over a variety of categories.
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Oil and natural gas production costs from continuing opera-
tions increased $243,696, or 266.5%, to $335,135 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to $91,439 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increase is largely the result of
the change in the number of producing wells in 2007 to 2006.
At December 31, 2007, forty two wells were producing. At
December 31, 2006, twenty one wells were beginning produc-
tion. These expenses consist primarily of well management,
water hauling and service rig expenses.

Legal and professional fees increased $7,387, or 3.2%, to
$235,640 for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to
$228,253 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

General and administrative expenses from continuing opera-
tions increased $182,652, or 30.3%, to $786,021 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to $603,369 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in general and
administrative expenses is due to various factors including
increased advertising, auto expense, auto lease expense,
meals and entertainment and travel. Additionally, salaries
were higher with an increase in staff to support the growth of
the company and the Board of Directors had one additional
member this year which increased their fees.

The Company’s equity interest in Kykuit Resources LLC
shows a loss of $28,817 for the year ended December 31, 2007.
The Kykuit joint venture began operations in August 2007. It
is anticipated that the drilling for this venture will not begin
until early spring of 2008.

Impairment and dry well costs from continuing operations
increased $27,547, or 2.7%, to $1,041,067 for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to $1,013,520 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The Company expensed five impaired or
dry wells during 2007. Four of the wells are from the current
drilling program and the other well is a deep exploratory
well in the Rose Run formation in Painesville, Chio which
has been unproductive despite the Company’s best efforts. In
2006, the Company decided to write the Painesville self-stor-
age facility down to its estimated fair market value and wrote
off one dry well. Impairments and dry wells could happen in
future quarters, particularly in an aggressive drilling pro-
gram.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses from con-
tinuing operations increased $392,112, or 43.5%, to $1,293,651
for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $901,539
for the year ended December 31, 2006. Depreciation, deple-
tion and amortization increased primarily due to higher
recorded well costs and increased well drilling in 2007 com-
pared to 2006, when the company began its drilling program.

Loss from Continuing Operations

The Company’s loss from continuing operations decreased
$778,895, or 39.7%, to a loss of $1,184,998 for the year ended
December 31, 2007 from a loss of $1,963,893 for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The Company’s losses for both
years were primarily due to impairments. The lower loss was
due to greater oil and natural gas revenues, net of greater
operating expenses,

Income from Discontinued Operations

The Company’s income from discontinued operations was
$287,104 from the sale of the Gahanna self-storage facility
during May 2007.

Net Loss

The Company had a net loss from operations of $897,894, for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to a net loss of
$1,961,838 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
Company’s losses in 2007 were primarily due to writing-off
five wells for $1,041,067 offset by the gain on the sale of the
Gahanna self-storage facility. The Company’s losses in 2006
were primarily due to an impairment expense of $733,258 on
the Painesville self-storage facility, writing-off a dry well for
$280,262 and $722,204 of depletion expense for the year.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates will increase,
which will result in an increase in the Company’s interest
expense on its variable rate loans.

All of the Company’s debt, totaling $10.2 million, is tied to
variable interest rates. If the Company’s interest rates on the
loans were to increase by 1% per year, the Company’s interest
expense would increase approximately $109,000 on an annual
basis. If interest rates increase, the Company’s results of oper-
ations may be materially and adversely affected.

Of-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company had off-balance sheet arrangements at
December 31, 2007. Regarding the Charter One Line of
Credit, the Company may be responsible should Mr. Osborne
not pay down his portion of the loan which currently has a
balance of $3.8 million. Additionally although the Company
is not liable for the contribution obligations of other members
of Kykuit Resources, LLC, the Company may decide to invest
additional funds should any of the other members not meet
their future required investments. However the Company
believes that either of these scenarios is highly unlikely.
Details of these transactions may be reviewed in notes 5 and 7
to the consolidated Financial Statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements that are not historical facts, including statements
about the Company’s confidence in its prospects and strate-
gies and its expectations about growth, are forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. These risks
and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control,
may include statements about our:

* business strategy;

* financial strategy;

* drilling locations;

s natural gas and oil reserves;

» realized natural gas and oil prices;
s production volumes;
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* lease operating expenses, general and administrative
expenses and finding and development costs;

* future operating results; and

* plans, objectives, expectations and intentions.

All of these types of statements, other than statements of his-
torical fact, included in this report are forward-looking state-
ments. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “could,”
“should,” “expect,” “plan,” “project,” “intend,” “anticipate,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “pursue,” “tar-
get,” “continue,” the negative of these terms or other compa-

rable terminology.

o

The forward-looking statements contained in this report are
largely based on our expectations, which reflect estimates
and assumptions made by our management. These esti-
mates and assumptions reflect our best judgment based on
currently known market conditions and other factors.
Although we believe these estimates and assumptions to be
reasonable, they are inherently uncertain and involve a num-
ber of risks and uncertainties that are beyond our control. In
addition, management’s assumptions about future events
may prove to be inaccurate. We caution all readers that the
forward-looking statements contained in this report are not
guarantees of future performance, and we cannot assure any
reader that such statements will be realized or the forward-
looking events and circumstances will occur. Actual results
may differ materially from those anticipated or implied in
the forward-looking statements due to factors listed in the
“Risk Factors” section and elsewhere in this report. All for-
ward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this
report. We do not intend to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. These cautionary statements
qualify all forward-looking statements attributable to us or
persons acting on our behalf.

Income Taxes

Prior to 2006, the Company elected to be taxed as a REIT
pursuant to Section 856 (c)(1} of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). The REIT provisions of
the Code generally allow a REIT to deduct dividends paid to
stockholders in computing the Company’s taxable income.
Since the change in the Company’s business plan would
result in the loss of the Company’s REIT status in 2006, the
Company elected to cease its REIT status in January 2006.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had net oper-
ating loss carry forwards (NOLS) for future years of approxi-
mately $13.5 million and $8.0 million, respectively. These
NOLS will expire at various dates through 2027. Utilization
of the NOLs could be limited if there is a substantial change
in ownership of the Company and is contingent on future
earnings. In addition, the Company paid $41,187 for alterna-
tive minimum tax (AMT) in 2006, creating a tax credit that
carries forward indefinitely.

The Company has provided a valuation allowance equal to
100% of the total net deferred asset in recognition of the

uncertainty regarding the ultimate amount of the net
deferred tax asset that will be realized.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements,” which establishes a formal frame-
work for measuring fair values of assets and liabilities in
financial statements that are already required by U.S. gener-
ally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be measured
at fair value. SFAS No. 157 clarifies guidance in FASB
Concepts Statement (CON) No. 7 which discusses present
value techniques in measuring fair value. Additional disclo-
sures are also required for transactions measured at fair
value. No new fair value measurements are prescribed, and
SFAS No. 157 is intended to codify the several definitions of
fair value included in various accounting standards.
However, the application of this Statement may change cur-
rent practices for certain companies. SFAS No. 157 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating what impact SFAS No. 157
may have on its financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.”

SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value
option has been elected will be recognized in earnings at
each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating what impact SFAS No. 159
may have on its financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

ltem 7. Financial Statements

The Company’s Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm and Consolidated Financial Statements are
filed as part of this report.

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with
Accountants on Rccounting and Financial
Disclosure

On April 4, 2006, Grant Thornton LLP notified John D. Oil
and Gas Company that it had declined to stand for re-
appointment as the Company’s independent accountants.
Grant Thornton declined to stand for re-appointment as a
result of the June 2005 change in the business plan of the
Company that permitted the Company to enter into the oil
and natural gas exploration business. There were no dis-
agreements with Grant Thornton relating to this change in
auditors,

On April 4, 2006, the Company engaged Hausser + Taylor
LLC as its independent accountants. In the fall of 2007,
Hauser + Taylor LLC changed their name to Maloney +
Novotny LLC.
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Item BALT). Controls and Procedures

The management of the Company is responsible for establish-
ing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control
over financial reporting as such term is defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. The Company’s internal control over financial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our internal control
over financial reporting is supported by a program of internal
audits and appropriate reviews by management, written poli-
cies and guidelines, careful selection and training of qualified
personnel, and a written Code of Conduct adopted by our
Company’s Board of Directors, applicable to all Company
Directors and all officers and employees of our Company.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finan-
cial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements and
even when determined to be effective, can only provide rea-
sonable assurance with respect to financial statement prepara-
tion and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that con-
trols may become inadequate because of changes in condi-
tions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of our Company’s Board of Directors
meets with the independent public accountants and manage-
ment periodically to discuss internal control over financial
reporting and auditing and financial reporting matters. The
Audit Committee reviews with the independent public
accountants the scope and results of the audit effort. The
Audit Committee also meets periodically with the independ-
ent public accountants without management present to
ensure that the independent public accountants have free
access to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s
Report can be found in the Definitive Proxy Statement to be
issued in connection with the Company’s 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

The Company’s management, including the Company’s chief
operating officer and chief financial officer, assessed the effec-
tiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this assess-
ment, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in “Internal Control - Integrated Framework.”
Based on our assessment, management believes that the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007. Further, there were no sig-
nificant changes in the internal controls, or, to our knowledge,
any other factors that could significantly affect such controls
subsequent to December 31, 2007.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of
the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Management's
report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s regis-
tered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the
Company to provide only management’s report in this annual
report.

ftem 8B. Other Information

None.

PART I

item 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Control
Persons and Cormnorate Governance; Compliance
with Section 16 {(a) of the Exchange Act

The information required by this Item ¢ is incorporated
herein by reference to the Registrant’s definitive Proxy
Statement, relating to its 2008 Annual Meeting (“Proxy
Statement,”) under the captions “Board of Directors,”
“Executive Officers,” “Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance,” “Code of Ethics,” and “Audit
committee Report.” The Proxy Statement will be filed with
the SEC no later than April 30, 2008.

item 10. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 10 is contained under the
caption “Executive Compensation and Other Information” in
the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ttem t1. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information required by Item 11 is contained under the
caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and
“Principal Stockholders” in the Proxy Statement and is incor-
porated herein by reference.

ltem 12. Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, and Director iIndependence

The information required by Item 12 is contained under the
caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and
“Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement and is incor-
porated herein by reference.

ftem 13. Exhibits
Exhibit No. Description
21 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of

December 28, 1999, by and among
Meridian Point Realty Trust ‘83, the
Company and Liberty Self-Stor Limited
Partnership (Exhibits A and B to the
Agreement and Flan of Merger are
Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2, respectively) (Filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated
January 12, 2000 and incorporated herein
by reference.)

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company
(Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K
dated January 12, 2000 and incorporated herein
by reference.) :

Articles of Amendment of Articles of
Incorporation of the Company dated June 27,
2005 (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Form
8-K dated July 1, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference.)

John D. Qil & Gas Company
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Item 13. Exhibits (continued)

3.3 Articles Supplementary to John D. Oil and Company and Terence P. Coyne dated February
Gas Company’s Articles of Incorporation, as 28, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s
amended, restated and supplemented dated Form 8-K dated March 2, 2006 and incorporated
February 12, 2008 (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to herein by reference.)

Registrant’s Form 8-K dated February 19, 2008
; . 109 Letter agreement between the Company and
and incorporated herein by reference.) Great Plains Exploration, LLC relating to the

34 Bylaws of the Company (Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to transfer of oil and natural gas wells dated as of
Registrant’s Form 8-K dated January 12, 2000 January 1, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
and incorporated herein by reference.) Registrant’s Form 10-QSB dated March 31, 2006

i Y g i herein by ref
4.1 Registration Rights Agreement between the and incorporated herein by reference.
Company and the Richard M. Osborne Trust 10.10 QOil and Gas rations and Sale Agreement
pany &
dated February 28, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to between the Company and Great Plains
Registrant’s Form 8-K dated February 24, 2006 Exploration, LLC dated as of January 1, 2006
and incorporated herein by reference.) (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 10-
p y iy B

9.1 Voting Trust Agreement between the Company, %rgigat:edml\fﬁ;nc:}r 2006 and incorporated
Richard M. Osborne and Gregory J. Osborne y '
dated February 16, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 7.1 to 1011 Amendment No 1 to Oil and Gas Operations
Registrant’s Form SC 13D/ A dated April 11, and Sale Agreement between the Company and
2006 and incorporated herein by reference.) Great Plains Exploration, LLC dated as of

) November 14, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to

10.1 1999 Stock Option and Award Plan of the . e T
Company (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Reglstradn't s Form IO'QEB de;ted September 30,
Form &K dated January 12, 2000 and 2006 and incorporated by reference.)
incorporated herein by reference.) 10.12 Revolving Demand Note of the Company

. ble to the Richard M. Osborne Trust dated

10.2 Lease between OsAir, Inc. and the paya . o
Company (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s ;S D.fJ anu?r%l, 2023 (Fggd das %X}Jlblt 11103?; tgoo 6
Form 8-K dated January 12, 2000 and cgistrant's Form 'Q ated March 31,
incorporated herein by reference.) and incorporated herein by reference.)

. . 10.13 Purchase and Sale Agreement between the

10.3 Agreement of Limited Partnership of LSS 1
Limited Parinership, dated December 29, 1999. E{’g‘gg‘;‘g da;;do?gcgg}};z??;%%% (()}f:ilGe aéhzgna
(Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Form 8-K Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s’ Form 8-K dated
gat;‘df gf;nlizr{ 12,2000 and incorporated herein October 12, 2006 and incorporated herein by

Y : reference.)

104 Cost Sharing Agreement, by and between
Liberty Self-Stor, Ltd. and Liberty Self-Stor1, 014 Loan Agreement between the Company, o«
Ltd. dated December 28, 1999 (Filed as Exhibit NA. date d as of September 28, 2006 (Filed
10.7 to Registrant’s Form 10-KSB, dated March as.E>.<hibit 101 to Rg trant's léorm 3K dated
15, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference.) ‘ &t S e

October 3, 2006 and incorporated herein by

10.5 Contract among Acquiport/ Amsdell I Limited reference.)
g?;;nf{f;h;isnﬂgggggg f?i}lﬁjsrdzgglf' 10.15 Rﬁvolving Term Note of Company in favor of
September 7, 2004 (Filed as Fxhibit 10.1 to Charter One Bank, N.A., dated as of September

. , 28, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s
Registrant’'s Form 8-K dated September 10, 2004 :
and incorporated herein by reference) Form 8~K. dated October 3, 2006 and incorpor-
ated herein by reference.)

10.6 Amended and Restated First Amendment to P
Agreement of Limited Partnership of LSS 1 1016 gl;?llﬁac:hc;;g]grgeQegtsl;eMEen (tjh(e:h ot
Limited Partnership dated March 29, 2006 (Filed One Bk A sffective ae of Bebruare 20,
as Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s form 10-KSB, 2007 F'Il o 25 Ex ﬁ.bf.: W'?la o) rebruary &
dated March 31, 2006 and incorporated herein 007 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form
by reference) ! 8-K dated February 26, 2007 and incorporated

Y herein by reference.)
10.7 Stock Subscription Agreement between the .
Company and the Richard M. Osborne Trust 1047 %&;‘3 ﬁggeg; ?’222?1??}?&1;2? Sgg]g:;})é
dated February 28, 2006 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to S .
. y N.A,, effective as of February 20, 2007 (Filed
Registrant's Form 8-K dated March 2, 2006 and Exhibit 10.2 to Regi ¥s F K dated
incorporated herein by reference.) as mxhibit 10.2 to Reglstrant’s Form & at
February 26, 2007 and incorporated herein by
10.8 Stock Subscription Agreement between the reference.)
John D. Oil & Gas Company
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Itemn 13. Exhibits (continued)

10.18 Extension Agreement between Richard M. Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated
Osborne, John D. Oil and Gas Company and August 3, 2007 and incorporated herein by
RBS Citizens, N.A., d/b/a Charter One dated reference.)
October 26, 2007 (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to . . .
Registrant’s Form 8-K dated October 26, 2007 1029 Cognovit Promissory Note of John D. Oil
and incorporated herein by reference.) and Gas Company dated August 28, 2007
y ’ {Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K
10.19 Extension Agreement effective as of December dated August 28, 2007 and incorporated herein
28, 2007 between John D. Oil and Gas Company by reference.)
an_d RBS Cln;eps A, d/b/ a Charter One 10.30 Cognovit Promissory Note of john D. Oil and
(Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K :

. Gas Company dated September 12, 2007 (Filed
dated December 28, 2007 and incorporated here Exhibit 101 to Regi 's Form 8-K dated
in by reference.) as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K date

September 12, 2007 and incorporated herein by
10.20 Extension Agreement effective as of February 26, reference.)
2008 between John D. Oil and Gas Company 1031 Cognovit Promissory Note of John D. Ol and
and RBS Citizens, N.A., d/b/a Charter One X
(Fi o . ; Gas Company dated October 10, 2007 (Filed as
iled as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K g .
. : Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated
dated February 26, 2008 and incorporated herein ) .
b October 10, 2007 and incorporated herein
y reference.)
by reference.)
10.21 Assignment and Assumption of Lease Purchase . . .
and Sale Agreement and First Amendment of 1032 Cognovit Promissory Note of John D. Oil and
. Gas Company dated November 20, 2007 (Filed
Lease Purchase and Sale Agreement entered into o .
) as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form
as of August 3, 2007 between Great Plains .
: . 8-K dated November 20, 2007 and incorporated
Exploration, LLC and Kykuit Resources, LLC herein by reference.)
(Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K in by referenice.
dated August 3, 2007 and incorporated herein 10.33 Cognovit Promissory Note of John D. Oil and
by reference.) Gas Company dated November 30, 2007 (Filed
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated
10.22 Lease Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as BISI .
March 21, 2007 between Hemus, Ltd. and Great EI ovefr;l;ex;S[;, 2007 and incorporated herein
Plains Exploration, LLC and First Amendment to y reference. .
Lease Purchase and Sale Agreement dated July 10.34 Purchase and Sale Agreement effective as of
24, 2007 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s January 30, 2008 between Liberty Self Stor, Ltd.
Form 8-K dated August 3, 2007 and incorporated and Richard M. Osborne, Trustee (Filed as Exhibit
herein by reference.) 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated December 28,
10.23 Joint Venture Development Agreement between 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.)
Kykuit Resources, LLC and Hemus, Ltd, effec 31.1* Section 302 Certification of Chairman of the
tive August 3, 2007 (Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Board and Chief Executive Officer {principal
Registrant’s Form 8-K dated August 3, 2007 and executive officer) pursuant to the Sarbanes-
incorporated herein by reference.) Oxdey Act of 2002
10.24 Operating Agreement of Kykuit Resources, LLC 32 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial
dated May 8, 2007 {Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Officer (principal financial officer) pursuant to
Registrant’s Form 8-K dated August 3, 2007 and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
incorporated herein by reference.) 321 Certification of Chairman of the Board and Chief
10.25 Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Executive Officer (principal executive officer)
Kykuit Resources, LLC dated October 24, 2007 and Chief Financial Officer {principal financial
(Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to Registrant’s Form 10- officer) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
QSB dated September 30, 2007 and incorporated adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
herein by reference.) Oxley Act of 2002.
10.26* First Amendment to Amended and Restated * Filed herewith
Operating Agreement of Kykuit Resources, LLC i
dated December 17, 2007. ttem 14. Principal Accoumant Fees and Services
10.27* Second Amendment to Amended and Restated The information required by Item 14 is contained under the

caption “Principal Accounting Firm Fees and Audit Committee
Pre-approval Policies and Procedures” in the Proxy Statement
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Operating Agreement of Kykuit Resources, LLC
dated February 27, 2008,

10.28 Cognovit Promissory Note of John D. Oil and
Gas Company dated August 3, 2007 (Filed as
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Dated: March 28, 2008 JOHN D. OIL AND GAS COMPANY

/s/ Richard M. Osborne

Richard M. Osborne
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Richard M. Osborne Dated: March 28, 2008 /s/ Marc C. Krantz Dated: March 28, 2008
Richard M. Osborne Marc C. Krantz
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director Secretary and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Gregory J. Osborne Dated: March 28, 2008
{s/ C.Jean Mihitsch Dated: March 28, 2008
. Gregory ]. Osborne
C. Jean Mihitsch President and Director
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) /s/ James R. Smail Dated: March 28, 2008
/s/ Steven A. Calabrese Dated: March 28, 2008 James R. Smail
Director
Steven A, Calabrese
Director /s/ Thomas J. Smith Dated: March 28, 2008
/s/ Terence P, Coyne Dated: March 28, 2008 Thomas ]. Smith
Director
Terence F. Coyne
Director
/s/ Richard T. Flenner Jr. Dated: March 28, 2008
Richard T. Flenner
Director
{s{ Mark D. Grossi Dated: March 28, 2008

Mark D. Grossi
Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
John D. Oil and Gas Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of John D. Oil and Gas Company (a Maryland
corporation) and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit
inctuded consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan-
cial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits, provide a reason-
able basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Maloney + Novotny LLC

Cleveland, Chio
March 28, 2008

John D. Oil & Gas Company
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John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006

ASSETS
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Current Assets:

Cash $ 30479 $ 23,892
Accounts Receivable 63,739 17,334
Accounts Receivable from Related Parties 919,542 745,302
Available for Sale Securities - 438422
Assets Held for Sale 204,762 -
Assets Related to Discontinued Operations, Net - 950,891
Other Current Assets 34,073 31,127

Total Current Assets 1,252,595 2,206,968

Property and Equipment Net 12,874,148 7,304,278

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate 1,261,930 -

Other Assets 13,894 32,234

TOTAL ASSETS b 15,402,567 % 9,543,480

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Line of Credit $ 5,700,000 % 3,085,000
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 100,725 86,780
Note Payable to Related Party 3,800,000 -
Accounts Payable 2,063,318 947,084
Accounts Payable to Related Parties 16,468 7,595
Liabilities - 755,345
Accrued Expenses 208,735 288,239

Total Current Liabilities 11,889,246 5,170,043

Long Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities 1,285,732 1,386,422

Asset Retirement Cbligation 211,777 90,324

Cther Long Term Liabilities - -

Commitments and Contingencies - .

Shareholders’ Equity:

Serial Preferred Stock - $.001 par value: 2,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued

and outstanding--Common Stock - $.001 par value: 50,000,000 shares authorized;

9,019,015 and 8,998,180 shares issued and outstanding respectively. 9,019 8,998

Paid-in Capital 28,871,616 28,854 588

Accurmulated Deficit (26,864,823) {25,966,929)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income - 34

Total Shareholders’ Equity 2,015,812 2,896,691

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 15,402,567 $ 9,543,480

The accompanying notes to conselidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
For The Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006

Revenues

Oil and Natural Gas Sales $ 2929356 § 1,364,497

Self-Storage Operation Revenues 348,537 355,512

Interest and Other 43,525 1,941
Total Revenues 3,321,421 1,721,850
Operating Expenses

Interest 569,672 197,915

Property Taxes and Insurance 113,293 117,209

Self-Storage Property Operating Expense 103,123 99,740

Oil and Natural Gas Production Costs 335,135 91,439

Legal and Professional Fees 235,640 228,253

General and Administrative 786,021 603,369

Loss from Unconsolidated Affiliate 28,817 -

Impairments 1,041,067 1,013,520

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization 1,293,651 901,539
Total Operating Expenses 4,506,419 3,252,984
Loss from Continuing Operations Before {1,184,998) (1,531,034)
Minority Interest and Income Taxes

Minority Interest - (391,672)

Income Taxes - {41,187)
Loss from Continuing Operations (1,184,998) {1,963,893)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (7,483) 2,055
Gain on Sale of Assets from Discontinued Operations 294,587 -
Income from Discontinued Operations 287,104 2,055
Net Loss 5 (897,894) $ (1,961,838)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Change in Fair Value of Available for Sale Securities (34) 34
Comprehensive Loss $ (897,928) $  (1,961,804)

Weighted Average Basic and diluted Shares Qutstanding 8,999,436 7,285,434

Loss per Common Share from Continuing Operations

- Basic and Diluted $ (013) % 0.27)

Income per Common Share from Discontinued

Operations — Basic and Diluted 0.03 -
Loss per Common Share - Basic and Diluted $ 0.10) $ 0.27)

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an Integral part of these statements.

John D. Oil & Gas Company

32




John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
For The Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Accumulated
Common Paid-in Accumulated Other
Stock Capital Deficit ~ Comprehensive Total

Income Loss
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 3082 $ 25798779 $ (24,005.091) % - % 1,796,770
Elzlt]'lot'lfloor;g;g;lg-: (Iit;(:;:;d in Private lacement, 4,800 2361570 i ) 236,370
Common Stock Issued for Director Compensation 14 9,986 10,000
Restricted Common Stock Award - 1,894 1,894
Common Stock Issued in Exchange for Debt 1,102 682,359 683,461
Net Loss {1,961,838) (1,961,838)
Changg in Fair Market Value of Available for Sale 3 3
Securities
Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 8998 $ 28,854,588 § (25966,929) % M $ 2,896,691
Common Stock Issued for Director Compensation 21 12,480 12,501
Restricted Common Stock Award 4,548 4,548
Net Loss (897,894) (857.894)
g)l:a‘_jr;%: él;cli]a;irﬁzgarket Value of Available (34) (34)
Balance at December 31, 2007 5 9019 $ 28871616 $ (26864,823) & - % 2015812

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements,
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John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For The Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 2007 2006
Net Loss $ 897.899) § (1,961,838)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash Provided By
Operating Activities
Impairments 1,041,067 1,013,520
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization 1,293,651 901,539
Gain on Sale of Securities {36,260) -
Loss {Gain) on Sale of Property and Equipment 3,703 (4,079)
Gain on sale of Discontinued Operations {294,587} -
Loss from Unconsolidated Affiliate 28,817 -
Minority [nterest - 391,672
Common Stock Issued as Compensation 12,501 10,000
Restricted Common Stock Award 4,548 1,894
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (220,645} (764,519}
Other Current Assets (2,946} (21,736)
Other Assets 18,340 (16,660)
Accounts Payable 1,125,107 789,771
Accrued Expenses (85,184} 47,619
Other Liabilities - (1,118)
Change in Discontinued Operations, Net {22,349) 45,807
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 1,967,869 431,872
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of Property and Equipment ) (31,903) (22,969)
Proceeds from Sale of Securities 474,648 -
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 1,245,889 -
Expenditures for Gil and Natural Gas Wells (7,970,517) (6,106,347)
Expenditures for Unconsolidated Affiliate 1,290,747}
Purchases of Securities - (438,388}
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (7,572,630) (6,567,704)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Line of Credit, Net 2,615,000 3,085,000
Proceeds from Common Stock Private Placement - 2,366,370
Proceeds from Related Party Loan 3,800,000 750,000
Principal Payments on Long Term Debt (86,745) (83,193)
Principal Payments to Related Party - (819,041)
Change in Discontinued Operations, Net (716,907) (18,025}
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 5,611,348 5,281,111
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 6,587 {854,721)
Cash, Beginning of Period 23,892 878,613
Cash, End of Period S 30479 S 23,892

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

John D. Qil and Gas Company, formerly Liberty Self-Stor,
Inc. (the “Company”), is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Maryland. In 1999, the Company suc-
ceeded to the business of Meridian Point Realty Trust ‘83.
Meridian was a California business trust that commenced
operation in 1983. Meridian was originally known as “Sierra
Real Estate Equity Trust '83,” changing its name in 1991.

In 1999, the stockholders elected trustees and approved cer-
tain proposals including, but not limited to, approval of the
reincorporation of Meridian into the Company, a perpetual-
life REIT, and the formation of an operating partnership, LSS
[ Limited Partnership (“1.85"), a Delaware limited partner-
ship, with the members of Liberty Self-Stor, Ltd., an Chio
limited liability company (the “Ohio LLC”). The members
of the Ohio LLC consisted of Richard M. Osborne, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Thomas J.
Smith, the former President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Company, and Retirement Management Company, an
Chio corporation owned by Mr. Osborne.

Each member of the Ohio LLC exchanged their membership
interests for Class A limited partnership interests in LSS,
resulting in LSS being the sole member of the Ohio LLC.
The Company contributed its net assets, primarily cash and
investments, to LSS in exchange for the sole general partner
interest therein and Class B limited partnership interests.
The Class A limited partnership interests are redeemable for
cash or, at the election of the Company, convertible into
shares of the Company’s stock based on an exchange factor.
The current exchange factor is .1377148 of a share for each
unit. The Class B limited partnership interests are not enti-
tled to redemption, conversion or a preferred return. At
December 31, 2007, the Company and the former members
of the Chio LLC had 29.9% and 70.1% equity interests in
LSS, respectively, and operated one self-storage facility locat-
ed in Painesville, Ohio. During April 2005, the Company
sold 18 self-storage facilities and in May 2007, the Company
sold one of the two remaining self-storage facilities. Because
L55's losses reduced the initial investment by the minority
interest to a receivable, the Company wrote-off the minority
interest in 2006 as it was deemed not to be collectible.

In conjunction with the name change from Liberty Self-Stor,
Inc. to John D. Qil and Gas Company on June 27, 2005, the
Company approved a change to its business plan to permit it
to enter into the business of extracting and producing oil and
natural gas products. The Company is actively drilling oil
and natural gas wells in Northeast Ohio. The Company can
not guarantee success under the new business plan as
drilling wells for oil and natural gas is a high-risk enterprise
and there is no guarantee the Company will become prof-
itable.

The Company currently has one self-storage facility located
in Painesville, Ohio. The Company may, if business and
time warrant, sell the Painesville facility in the future.

Principles of Consolidation

Pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement of LSS,
the Company, as sole general partner, controls LSS.
Accordingly, the Company accounts for its investment in
LSS utilizing the consolidation method. Our investment in
an unconsolidated affiliate, Kykuit Resources LLC
(“Kykuit,”) is accounted for using the equity method. All
significant inter-company transactions and balances have
been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company maintains cash at various financial institu-
tions which, at times, may exceed federally insured amounts
and may significantly exceed balance sheet amounts due to
outstanding checks. The Company considers highly liquid
debt instruments with original maturities of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable, arising from the self-
storage business, are due from individuals as well as busi-
ness entities. Tenants are required to pay their rent on the
first of each month. Past due amounts are those that are out-
standing longer than the contractual payment terms, 1f an
account is more than 75 days past due, the Company gener-
ally writes off the balance directly to expense. For such past
due accounts, the Company has the right to auction the con-
tents of the rented space, which allows for recovery of writ-
ten-off balances. Any such recoveries are credited to income
when received.

The Company has certain trade receivables consisting of oil
and natural gas sale obligations due under normal trade
terms. The Company currently sells its production to a relat-
ed party through an oil and natural gas agreement, extend-
ing credit on an unsecured basis to them. In evaluating its
allowance for possible losses, the Company performs a
review of outstanding receivables. The trade receivables out-
standing are typically three months of natural gas produc-
tion due to the timing and accounting treatment by the main
distribution pipeline company in Northeast Ohio. At
December 31, 2007, the Company’s credit evaluation indicat-
ed that it has no need for an allowance for possible losses.

Property and Equipment

Ali property and equipment is depreciated using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of twenty
five years for buildings and improvements and five to seven
years for furniture and equipment.

The Company uses the successful efforts method of account-
ing for oil and natural gas producing activities. Under this
method, acquisition costs for proved and unproved proper-
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John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued}

ties are capitalized when incurred. Exploration costs, includ-
ing geological and geophysical costs, the costs of carrying and
retaining unproved properties and exploratory dry hole
drilling costs, are expensed. Development costs, including the
costs to drill and equip development wells and successful
exploratory drilling costs to locate proved reserves, are capi-
talized. Upon sale or retirement of a proved property, the cost
and accumulated depreciation and depletion and amortiza-
tions are eliminated from property accounts and the resultant
gain or loss is recognized.

Exploratory drilling costs are capitalized when incurred pend-
ing the determination of whether a well has found proved
reserves. If a well is determined to be successful, the capital-
ized drilling costs will be reclassified as part of the cost of the
well. If a well is determined to be unsuccessful, the capital-
ized drilling costs will be charged to expense in the period the
determination is made. 'The Company has some limited par-
ticipation in exploratory drilling.

Development costs of proved oil and natural gas properties,
including estimated dismantlement, restoration, abandon-
ment costs and acquisition costs, are depreciated and depleted
on a well by well basis by the units-of-production method
using estimated proved developed reserves. The costs of
unproved oil and natural gas properties are periodically
assessed for impairment.

At December 31, 2007, two parcels of land were categorized
as Assets Held for Sale totaling $204,762. This land is
adjacent to one of the self-storage facilities sold to U-Store-It
in April 2005. At December 31, 2007, the Company had
entered into an agreement for a possible sale of the land.
Subsequently on February 1, 2008, the land was sold to
Richard M. Osborne, Chairman of the Board, at its

book value.

Asset Impairment

The Company reviews its self-storage properties and capital-
ized well costs for impairment when events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate the carrying amounts of the properties
may not be recoverable. When such conditions exist, man-
agement estimates future cash flows from operations and ulti-
mate disposition of the individual properties. if the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an adjustment to reduce the carrying
amount to the related property’s estimated fair market value
would be recorded and an impairment loss would be recog-
nized. In evaluating its capitalized well costs, the Company
wrote off the costs related to five wells amounting to
$1,041,067 in 2007. The Company recorded an impairment
charge on its Painesville self-storage facility in the fourth
quarter of 2006 of $733,258. Additionally in evaluating its
capitalized well costs in 2006, it was determined that one well
should be written off amounting to $280,262.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Company accounts for its asset retirement obligations in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 143, “Accounting for

Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement requires that
the fair value of an asset retirement obligation be recognized
in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. For the Company, asset retirement
obligations primarily relate to the abandonment, dismantling
and plugging of oil and natural gas wells. The present value
of the estimated asset retirement cost is capitalized as part of
the long-lived asset. The capitalized asset retirement cost is
depreciated and the asset retirement obligation is accreted to
interest expense over the estimated life of the well.

The following table presents the Company’s asset retirement
obligation activity for the years ended December 31:

2007 2006
Asset retirement obligations,
beginning of the year 5 90324 s -
Liabilities incurred during the 127,133 85,069
year
Liabilities settled during the _ _
year
Accretion expense 24,320 5,255
Asset retirement
obligations, end of the year 241,777 90,324
Less current liabilittes 30,000 -
Asset retirement obligations, s M7 % 90,324

net of current maturities

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the asset retirement obliga-
tions are included in accrued expenses (current portion) and
asset Tetirement obligations (non-current portion) in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The current portion
of the asset retirement obligations were $30,000 and $0 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue from self-storage operations is
derived primarily from monthly rentals of self-storage units.
Rental revenue is recognized in the period the rent is earned
which is typically on a monthly basis.

The Company also leases certain commercial space in its
Painesville property under long-term lease agreements. Total
lease revenue related to these leases was $187,225 and
$214,084 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Revenue under these long-term lease agree-
ments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the respective
lease terms.
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Future minimum lease revenue for continuing operations
under non-cancelable leases for each of the four succeeding
annual periods ending December 31 are as follows:

2008 $ 190,380
2009 190,380
2010 108,720
20m 36,443

$ 525923

The Company recognizes revenue from its oil and natural
gas interests in producing wells as oil and natural gas is sold
to a purchaser at a fixed or determinable price when delivery
has occurred, title and risk of loss have transferred to the
purchaser and the collectability of revenue is reasonably
assured. The Company has a management agreement with
a related party to transport the Company’s natural gas pro-
duction through the related party’s pipeline and include this
natural gas with the related party’s natural gas in order to
fulfill production contracts they currently have in place. The
actual funds are typically received within three months due
to the accounting treatment by the main distribution pipeline
company in Northeast Chio.

Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No.
130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” requires disclosure
of comprehensive income and its components in a full set of
financial statements. Comprehensive income is defined as
changes in shareholders” equity from non-owner sources
and, for the Company, includes fair market value adjust-
ments to available for sale securities, in compliance with
SFAS No. 133, as amended.

Stock-Based Compensation

The 1999 Stock Option Plan (“the Plan”), which was
approved by stockholders, permits the grant of non-statuto-
ry stock options (“NSSOs”), incentive stock options (“1SOs”
and together with NSSOs, “options”) and restricted shares.
The Plan was adopted to attract and retain qualified and
competent persons who are key to the Company, including
key employees, officers, and directors. The Plan provides for
the grant to employees of ISOs within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Code, for grant of NSSOs to eligible
employees (including officers and directors) and non-
employee directors and for the grant of restricted share
awards. The Company may grant up to 300,000 options or
restricted shares pursuant to the Plan. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, 35,000 stock options were outstanding.
During the second quarter of 2006, the former President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Company was awarded
35,000 restricted shares with a fair value of $22,750 with com-
pensation expense to be amortized ratably over a five year
vesting period. The compensation expense recorded for the

restricted shares during the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006 was $4,548 and $1,894, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based
Payment,” using the modified prospective transition
method, and thus the results of operations for prior periods
will not be restated. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the
Company applied the intrinsic-value-based method of
accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.”

The following table presents the stock options outstanding at
December 31:

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Shares  Average Shares Average
Price Price
Outstanding at 35,000 0.56 135,000 (.56
beginning of year
Granted — —
Exercised - -
Forfeited — 100,000  $0.56
Outstanding at 35,000 $0.56 35,000 $0.56
end of year
Options available 265,000 265,000
for grant
Exercisable atend 35,000 %0.56 35,000 $0.56

of year

Income Taxes

Prior to 2006, the Company elected to be taxed as a real

estate investment trust (“REIT”) pursuant to Section

856(c){(1) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
The change in the Company’s business plan to oil and gas
production resulted in the loss of the Company’s REIT
status in 2006. Therefore, the Company’s Board of Directors
determined it was in the best interest of the Company to
terminate the REIT status effective January 1, 2006. After
that date, the Company became a “C” Corporation for

tax purposes.

In establishing a provision for income taxes, the Company
must estimate when in the future certain items will affect
taxable income. Deferred taxes are recorded for future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in the
financial statements or tax returns, based upon enacted tax
laws and rates. Deferred tax assets are recognized subject
to management’s judgment that realization is more likely

than not.
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In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN No. 48
addresses the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48
prescribes specific criteria for the financial statement recogni-
tion and measurement of the tax effects of a position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. This interpretation also
provides guidance on de-recognition of previously recognized
tax benefits, classification of tax liabilities on the balance sheet,
recording interest and penalties on tax underpayments,
accounting in interim periods, and disclosure requirements.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48 on
January 1, 2007. The implementation of FIN No. 48 did not
have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
The Company has net operating loss carry forwards (NOLS)
and a valuation allowance to offset any tax effects. The
Company has no unrecognized tax benefits and therefore,
there is no anticipated effect on the Company’s effective tax
rate. Any tax penalties or interest expense will be recognized
in income tax expense. No interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits were accrued at December 31, 2007.

The Company is open to federal and state tax audits until the
applicable statute of limitations expire. There are currently no
federal or state income tax examinations underway for the
Company. The tax years 2003 through 2006 remain open to
exarnination by the major taxing jurisdictions in which we
operate, although no material changes to unrecognized tax
positions are expected within the next twelve months. The
Company does, however, have prior year net operating losses
which remain open for examination.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates,

The Company’s financial statements are based on a number
of significant estimates, including reliability of receivables,
selection of useful lives for property and equipment and tim-
ing and costs associated with its retirement obligations.
Estimated oil and natural gas reserve quantities are the basis
for the calculation of depreciation, depletion and impairment
of oil and natural gas properties.

The Company’s 0il and natural gas business makes it vulnera-
ble to changes in wellhead prices of crude oil and natural gas.
Such prices have been volatile in the past and can be expected

to continue to be volatile. Proved reserves are based on cur-
rent oil and naturat gas prices and estimated reserves, which
is considered a significant estimate by the Company, and is
subject to change.

Cash-flow Restatement

At December 31, 2007, the Company restated the December
31, 2006 financial statements due to the classification of dis-
continued operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is
determined by using available market information and appro-
priate valuation methodologies. The Company’s principal
financial instruments are cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and long term debt. Cash, accounts receivable and
accounts payable, due to their short maturities, and liquidity,
are carried at amounts which reasonably approximate fair
value. Based upon rates available for similar borrowings, the
Company’s book value approximated the fair value of its
long-term debt at December 31, 2007.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements,” which establishes a formal framework for
measuring fair values of assets and liabilities in financial state-
ments that are already required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) to be measured at fair value.
SFAS No. 157 clarifies guidance in FASB Concepts Statement
(CON) No. 7 which discusses present value techniques in
measuring fair value. Additional disclosures are also required
for transactions measured at fair value. No new fair value
measurements are prescribed, and SFAS No. 157 is intended
to codify the several definitions of fair value included in vari-
ous accounting standards. However, the application of this
Statement may change current practices for certain compa-
nies. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating
what impact SFAS No. 157 may have on its financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS
No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value. Unrealized
gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has
been elected will be recognized in earnings at each subse-
quent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is current-
ly evaluating what impact SFAS No. 159 may have on its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

John D. Oil & Gas Company

38




John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Stockholders’ Equity

In December of 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted five of its outside board members 4,167 shares of
common stock valued at $0.60 per share. The total shares
awarded of 20,835 were issued as partial compensation for
their board participation.

During 2006, the Company issued stock in several private
placement offerings. In the first half of 2006, the Company
sold 2.2 million shares to two board members and 2.6 million
shares to private investors. The proceeds received from
these private placements were used for general corporate
purposes and costs associated with the Company’s oil and
natural gas production business.

[n June of 2006, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted four of its outside board members 3,571 shares of
common stock valued at $0.70 per share. The total shares
awarded of 14,284 were issued as partial compensation for
their board participation.

Additionally, the Company issued 1,102,355 shares of its
common stock to the Richard M. Osborne Trust, for which
Richard M. Osborne is the sole trustee, in satisfaction of the
amount of $683,461 for the outstanding balance on the
revolving demand note dated January 1, 2006, various
accounts payables and accounts receivables. All shares were
issued at a price of $0.62.

3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at
December 31:

2007 2006

il and Natural gas Properties:

Proved Properties $ 12,173,194 § 5,328,224

Unproved Properties 1,803,800 582,920
Accumulated Depletion (2,861,141) (722,204)
potal Ol and Natural gas 1,115853 5188940
roperties
Land 307,780 512,542
Building and Improvements 2,357,822 2,357,084
Fumniture and Equipment 200,212 193,182
Accumulated Depreciation (1,107,519} {047,470)
ggt:i'p?ntx: Property and 1758295 2,115,338

Property and Equipment, Net  $ 12,874,148 $ 7,304,278

During 2007, the Company continued its aggressive drilling
program in the last half of 2007, ending the year with forty
two productive wells. Five wells were written off during
2007, including a deep well in the Rose Run formation in
Painesville, Ohio. The Company spent significant time and
effort on this well before deciding to write it off.

4. Rvailahle for Sale Securities

The Company, with Board approval, decided in October
2006 to invest in the stock of a Nasdaq Small Cap listed pub-
lic 0il and gas company. The book value at December 31,
2007 was $0 and at December 31, 2006 was $438,422. During
April 2007, the stock was sold and the Company recorded a
gain on the sale of $36,260 and a fair value adjustment of
($34) was recorded to comprehensive income.

d. Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

The Company holds an investment in an unconsolidated
affiliate, Kykuit Resources LLC, which is accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. The Company began
investing in Kykuit during the third quarter of 2007. Kykuit
Resources LLC has a 75% interest in certain oil, natural gas
and mineral rights located in the Montana Breaks area of
Montana. The Company is the managing member and
43.8% owner of Kykuit. The current investment by the
Company in this venture is $1,261,930. It is anticipated that
drilling will begin in the early spring of 2008. The following
table displays the balance sheet and income statement of
Kykuit at December 31, 2007.

December 31, 2007

Current Assets $ 316,752
Unproved Leaseholds 2,707,773
Eté;nrlet-;getizr;d Fixtures, Net of 31,536
Other Assets 42,135
5 3,098,196
Current Liabilities % 214,791
Paid in Capital 2,949,248
Accumulated Deficit (65,843)
$ 3,098,196
Total Revenue % -
Total Expenses 65,843
Net Loss $ (65,843)

John D. Qil & Gas Company

39




John D. Oil and Gas Company and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

On May 21, 2007, the Company completed the sale of its
self-storage facility located in Gahanna, Ohio pursuant to the
Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) among
Liberty Self-Storage, LTD. (the trade name of the Company),
Columbus Tile Yard, LLC and Buckeye Storage of Gahanna
LLC, or its nominee, for the purchase price of $1,400,000.
The assets of the Gahanna, Ohio self-storage facility consist-
ed primarily of property and equipment with a net book
value of approximately $924,000. The liabilities consisted
primarily of a mortgage of approximately $708,000. The
original purchase price was reduced by $50,000 pursuant to
an amendment to the Agreement in December 2006.
$150,000 of the purchase price was allocated to Columbus
Tile Yard for the vacant land that it owned. Richard M.
Osborne, the Company’s Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, is the owner of Columbus Tile Yard.

Prior to the date of the sale, the Company was uncertain as
to its completion due to several delays requested by the pur-
chaser. The Company’s results of operations have been
restated to reclassify the net earnings of the self-storage facil-
ity sold as discontinued operations for all periods presented.
The following table summarizes income and loss from dis-
continued operations for the years ended December 31:

Revenues

1. line of Credit and Long-Term Debit

On September 28, 2006, the Company entered into an unse-
cured loan agreement with Mr. Richard Osborme and Charter
One Bank. The Company and Mr. Osborne are co-borrowers
on a one year line of credit which provides for up to $5.0
million dollars in total borrowings with interest at a rate of
1.75% over LIBOR adjusted monthly. The Charter One liabil-
ity is joint, so the Company or Mr. Osborne could have to
pay the debt for the other.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had drawn $3,085,000
and Mr. Osborne had drawn $1,500,000 of the available bal-
ance on the line of credit. Subsequently on February 20,
2007, the Company entered into a Modification Agreement
between the Company, Mr. Osborne and Charter One Bank.
The Modification Agreement increased the available line of
credit from $5.0 million to $7.5 million until May 21, 2007, at
which time the available amount reverted back to $5.0 mil-
lion. In order to increase the line of credit, the Company
granted Charter One Bank a security interest in and lien on
substantially all of the Company’s assets. A second modifi-
cation agreement dated April 6, 2007 was negotiated and
increased the available line of credit from $7.5 million to $9.5
million for an additional 90 days, at which time the available
amount will revert back to $5 million. Subsequently, the
loan was extended to March 31, 2008 at the $9.5 million level.
The Company is in the process of
renegotiating a renewal that will
extend for a longer time frame,

Revenues from real estate operations $72,771 $205,726  lthough there can be no assurances

the Company will be able to obtain
. another extension. At December 31,

Operating expenses 2007, the Company had drawn
5,700,000 and Mr. Osborne had

Interest expense 22,982 58,769 drawn $3,800,000 of the available bal-
ance on the line of credit. The average

Property taxes and insurance 11,654 31,325 balance during 2007 was $8.2 million
and the weighted average interest rate

Property operating expense 30,318 71,860 Was 7.08%.

Legal and professional fees 2217 -

Depreciation and amortization 13,083 41,717

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

before gain on sale of self-storage facility (7,483) 205

Gain on sale of self-storage facility 294,587 -

Income from discontinued operations $287,104 $ 2,055
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

Current Outstanding Balances
Site Interest Rate  Maturity  Interest December 31,2007  December 31, 2006
Reference Index Date Rate {audited) (audited)
Continuing oo 30 day LIBOR
Operations Painesville plits 2.50% 3-30-09 7.355% % 1386457 & 1,473,202
Discontinued .
Operations Gahanna Prime 3-01-09 8.25% - 716,907
Long-Term Debt Total 1,386,457 2,190,109
Less continuing current maturities 100,725 86,780
Less Discontinued Operations - 716,907
Long-Term debt, net of current maturities $ 1,285,732 % 1,386,422
Future maturities of debt based on stated maturities, exclusive  §, Notes mme to Related Pam

of the line of credit, for each of the succeeding annual periods
ending December 31 and thereafter are as follows:

§ 1,386,457

The Painesville facility is encumbered by a mortgage in the
original amount of $2,062,128, maturing on March 30, 2009.
Monthly principal and interest payments are $16,612, with a
current interest rate of 7.355%, using a 20-year amortization
period. The principal amount of the loan as of December 31,
2007, was $1,386,457.

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 respectively,
the Company paid $532,022 and $190,161 in interest on its
debt instruments.

The Company entered into an agreement with Mr. Osborne
for an unsecured revolving demand note dated January 1,
2006. Interest is payable annually at the prime rate with prin-
cipal being due on demand. The revolving demand note does
not include an expiration date or a limit on the amount that
the Company may borrow. The prime rate at December 31,
2007 was 7.25%. There were no outstanding balances under
the note at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company has entered into loans with Great Plains
Exploration, LLC totaling $3,800,000 evidenced by six promis-
sory notes. The loans do not include an expiration date or a
limit on the amount that the Company may borrow. The
notes are payable on demand and bear interest at the rate of
LIBOR plus 1.75% per year {6.38125% at December 31, 2007).

Interest expense on related party notes payable, included in
total interest on debt instruments was $48,053 and $29,818 for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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9. Eamings/Loss Per Share

Basic income (loss) per share of common stock for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 is determined by dividing

net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period.

The stock options and restricted stock awards for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were anti-dilutive and had no
effect on diluted earnings per share. The Company also has Class A Limited Partnership interests whose exchange factor is

1377148 per share.

The following table reconciles the weighted average shares outstanding and the income available to common shareholders
used for basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The Company paid no cash distributions to its stockholders during 2007 and 2006.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in basic 8,999,436 7,285,434
earnings per commen share calculation
Dilutive effect of stock options - -
Dilutive effect of Class A Limited Partnership interests - -
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding adjusted for effect of 8,999,436 7,285,434
dilutive options and Class A convertible stock used in diluted EPS calculation
Loss from continuing operations $ (1,184,998) $ (1,963,893)
Income from discontinued operations 287,14 2,055
Net Loss $ (897,894) $ (1,961,838)
Basic and Diluted:
Loss per common share from continuing operations $ (0.13) % 0.27)
Eamnings per common share from discontinued operations 0.03 -
(Loss) Earnings per common share, net $ 010} $ {0.27)
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10. Income Taxes

The reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the
Company’s effective income tax rate applicable to income from
continuing operations (before minority interest) after the
Company ceased its REIT status is as follows:

2007 2006

Proviston(benefit} based on

$ (305,000 (34.0) § (520,000 (34.00

the federal statutory rate

Increase in valuation

305,000 34.0 561,100 36.7

allowance

$ - - _$ 41,100 27

The following table represents the Company's significant
deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007
and 2006:

Net operating loss carry forwards $ 4,610,000 $ 2,649,000
AMT credit 41,100 41,100
Total deferred tax assels 4,651,100 2,690,100

Deferred tax liabilities

Qil and natural gas properties,

principally due to differences

in depreciation, depletion

and amortization {2,920,000) {1,593,000)

Net deferred tax assets 1,731,100 1,097,100

Valuation Allowance (1,731,100) (1,097,100)

Net deferred tax assets % b

At December 31, 2007, the Company had net operating loss
carry forwards (NOLS) for future years of approximately $13.5
millior. These NOLS will expire at various dates through
2027, Utilization of the NOLs could be limited if there is a sub-
stantial change in ownership of the Company and is contin-
gent on future earnings. In addition, the Company paid
$41,187 for alternative minimum tax (AMT) in 2006, creating a
tax credit that carries forward indefinitely.

The Company has provided a valuation allowance equal to
100% of the total net deferred asset in recognition of the uncer-
tainty regarding the ultimate amount of the net deferred tax
asset that will be realized. In 2006, the Company began operat-
ing in the oil and natural gas business, which is subject to
many risks. The Company also expects to continue generating
tax losses in the next few years due to timing differences.

1. Other Related Party Transactions

Richard M. Osborne is the sole manager of Liberty Self-Stor II,
Ltd., an Ohio limited liability company, which is the owner of a
truck rental business, which makes trucks available for short-
term rental to the general public, including tenants of the
Company’s self-storage facility, and provides for the retail sale
of locks, boxes, packing materials and related merchandise at
the self-storage facility. The Company has entered into a cost
sharing agreement with Liberty Self-Stor Il, Ltd. with respect to
the sharing of employees and space at the office of the self-
storage facility for the benefit of both companies. As of
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Company
owed Liberty Self-Stor I1, Ltd. $16,468 and $7,595, respectively,
associated with these transactions, as well as for cash advances
between the companies, which are included in accounts
payable to related parties in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

On December 28, 1999, the stockholders approved the
Company’s lease of its executive offices from OsAir, Inc,, a
company owned by Mr. Osborne. The current lease has a three
year term maturing on March 31, 2009 for $1,350 per month.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, rent expense totaling
$16,200 and $16,050, respectively, related to this lease is includ-
ed in general and administrative expenses.

The Company had $5,063 at December 31, 2007 and $59,950 at
December 31, 2006 included in accounts receivable from relat-
ed parties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The balances represent amounts owed to the Company by var-
ious companies owned by Mr. Osborne. The amounts primari-
ly relate to cost sharing in well joint ventures and line of credit
interest.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company entered into a contract
with Great Plains Exploration, LLC (“Great Plains”) for well
operations and to sell natural gas and oil production. Great
Plains is wholly owned by Mr. Osborne. The Company paid
Great Plains $2,139,768 and $780,432 for capitalized costs to
manage and drill wells per the operating agreement for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
Company also had $914,479 and $685,352 included in accounts
receivable from related parties that is due from Great Plains at
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 for oil and natural
gas sales, respectively.

The following table summarizes the payments received for oil
and natural gas production and payments paid for expenses to
Great Plains for the periods indicated.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

Net Revenue From the Sale of Oil and Natural
Gas Prduction 5 2917900 1364497

Operating expenses
Well Management and Water Hauling $ 202,582 $ 64,995

Pipeline Transportation Costs $ 432915 § 203,013
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The Company has entered into non-operator joint venture operating agreements with J.R. Smail, Inc., a corporation owned
by James R. Smail, a director of the Company. The amounts paid to ].R. Smail, Inc. and capitalized to property and equip-
ment for the joint venture by the Company totaled $504,313 and $109,136 at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
respectively. Net revenue received from J. R. Smail, Inc for the sale of natural gas and oil from the joint venture wells in 2007
was $11,459. Additionally, Mr. Smail owns a drilling company, Poulson Drilling Corporation, which was paid $294,299 for
drilling wells for the Company for the year ended December 31, 2007. The costs are recorded in proved properties.

On August 3, 2007, Kykuit Resources, LLC purchased from Hemus, Ltd. (“Hemus”) a 75% interest in certain oil, natural gas
and mineral rights located in the Montana Breaks area of Montana. The Company is the managing member of Kykuit and
owns 43.8% of the Company. At the same time, Kykuit and Hemus executed a joint venture development agreement pur-
suant to which Kykuit agreed to develop and operate all of their joint leasehold interests in the Montana Breaks. The current
investment by the Company in this venture is $1,261,930. It is anticipated that drilling will begin in the early spring of 2008.

Richard M. Osborne, the Company’s chairman and chief executive officer, and Steven A. Calabrese, a director of the
Company, also own interests in Kykuit. Energy West Incorporated, a publicly-held public utility company of which Richard
Osborne is the chairman and a significant stockholder, also owns an interest in Kykuit.

Marc C. Krantz, a director and secretary of the Company, is the managing partner of the law firm of Kohrman Jackson &
Krantz PLL, which provides legal services to the Company.

12. Ainancial Information Relating to Industry Segments

The Company reports operating segments and reportable segments by business activity according to SFAS No. 131,
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” The Company includes revenues from external cus-
tomers, interest revenue and expense, depreciation, depletion and amortization and other operating expenses in its measure
of segment profit or loss.

The Company’s operations are classified into two principal industry segments. The following table presents the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Oil and Gas
Twelve Months ended December 31, 2007 Production Self-Storage Facilities Total
$

Revenues from external customers % 2,929 359 348537 % 3,277,896
Interest revenue 43,525 - 43,525

2,972,884 348,537 3,321,421
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,170,773 122,878 1,293,651
Property Operating Costs 335,135 103,123 438,258
Loss from unconsolidated affiliate 28,817 - 28,817
Other Operating expenses 957,074 177,880 1,134,954
Impairment and dry well costs 1,041,067 - 1,041,067
Interest expense 452,891 116,781 569,672

3,985,757 520,662 4,506,419
Net Loss from Continuing Operations (1,012,873) (172,125) (1,184,998}
Net Income from Discontinued Operations - 287,104 287,104
Net Income (Loss) $ (1,012873) % 114979 § (897,894)
Property and Equipment additions $ 7970517 § 31,903 % 8,002,420
Total Assets $ 13,465,139 $ 1,937,438 $ 15,402,567
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Oil and Gas
Tivelve Months ended December 31, 2006 i SeIf-Storage Facilities Total
$

Production

Revenues from external customers 1,364,497 355,512 1,720,009
Interest revenue 1,658 283 1,941

1,366,155 355,795 1,721,950
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 750,851 150,688 901,539
Property Operating Costs 91,439 99,740 191,179
Other Operating expenses 775,081 173,750 948,831
Impairment and dry well costs 280,262 733,258 1,013,520
Interest expense 81,759 116,156 197,915

1,979,392 1,273,592 3,252,984
Net Loss before taxes, minority interest and
discontinued oerations {613,237} {917,797) £1,531,034)
Provision for income taxes - current (41,187) - (41,187)
Minority Interest - (391,672) {391,672)
Discontinued Operations - 2,055 2,055
Net Loss 5 (654,424) $ (1.307.414} % (1,961,838}
Property and Equipment additions $ 6,106,347 § 299 % 6,129,316
Total Assets $ 6,530,616 $ 3,012,864 $ 9,543,480

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Matters

The oil and gas industry is subject, by its nature, to environmental hazards and clean-up costs. At this time, management
knows of no substantial costs from environmental accidents or events for which it may be currently liable.

Oil and Gas Contracts

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company entered into a contract with Great Plains Exploration, LLC for well operations and
sale of natural gas and oil production to third parties. The term of the agreement was one year from the effective date. It
was extended as of January 1, 2007 and shall be extended for consecutive one year periods unless terminated earlier. The
original contract was amended November 14, 2006 and filed as exhibit 10.4 to the 10-QSB for September 30, 2006. The
Amendment No. 1 to the Qil and Gas Operations and Sale Agreement modified the original terms to create less cumbersome
paperwork in tracking cost sharing between the companies.

4. Subsequent Events

Effective February 12, 2008, the Company filed Articles Supplementary to its Articles of Incorporation, as amended, restated
and supplemented with the State Department of Assessment and Taxation of Maryland designating 5,000 Series A Preferred
Shares. Dividends accumulate on the Series A preferred Shares at the rate of 8% per annum and must be paid on a quarterly
basis. Fatlure to pay dividends on a timely basis results in the imposition of a default rate 10% per annum that continues
until the default is cured by the Company by payment of all accrued dividends. The shares are convertible into common
shares.

The Company sold an aggregate of 650 shares of its Series A Convertible Preferred Shares, par value $.01 per share, in a pri-
vate placement to a total of two accredited investors, effective February 12, 2008. All Series A Preferred Shares were sold at a
price of $1,000 per share for a total of $650,000 with no underwriting discounts or commissions, as no underwriters were
used to facilitate the transactions.
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195. Supplemental Disclosures About 0il and Natural Gas Producing Activities - Unaudited
Estimated Proved Reserves

Users of this information should be aware that the process of estimating quantities of “proved” crude oil and natural gas
reserves is very complex. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves, including
many factors beyond the control of the Company, such as additional development activity, evolving production history and
reassessment of the viability of production under varying prices and other economic conditions. As a result, revision to exist-
ing estimates may occur.

The following table presents the Company’s estimated gross proved oil and natural gas reserves, which are all located in the
continental United States, based on reserve reports prepared by Schlumberger Data and Consulting Services:

Proved developed and undeveloped reserves.

2007 2006

Natural Gas Qil Natural Gas Oil
(MCF) {BBLs) (MCP (BBLs)

Revision of previous estimates,

extensions and other additions 456,500 3,400 1,514,200 15,800
Net Reserve additions 1,150,900 22,800 - -
Production {350,000) {3,700} (165,600) (1,000}

End of Year 2,646,000 1,348,600 14,800

Proved developed reserves:

Beginning of Year 1,348,600 14,800 - -

End of Year 2,646,000 37,300 1,348,600 14,800

Capitalized Costs Relating to Oil and Natural gas Producing Activities

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Proved oil and natural gas properties $ 12,173,194 § 5,328,224
Unproved oil and natural gas properties 1,803,800 582,920
T ]
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (2,861,141) (722,204)
Net capitalized costs % 11,115,853 $% 5,188,940

Costs Incurred in Oil and Natural gas Producing Activities

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Property acquisition costs $ 9,724 5 14,177
Development costs $ 8,046,599 $ 5,896,967
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Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands of dollars)

Future cash inflows from sales of oil and gas
Future production and development costs
Future asset retirement obligations

Future income tax expense

Future net cash flows

Future net cash flows 10% annual discount for
estimated timing of cash flows

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

Future net cash flows were computed using year-end prices
and costs and federal statutory income tax rates.

Changes in the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows.

Balance, beginning of year

Extensions, discoveries and other addittons
Reviston of quantity estimates

Sales of oil and gas, net of production costs
Net change in prices and production costs
Net change in income taxes

Accretion of discount

Other

Balance, end of year

John D. Oil & Gas Company

2007 2006

$ 23,737 § 10,100
(8,831) (3,902)

(853) (90)

(4,778) (2,000)

9,275 4,108

(3,384) (1,301)

$ 5891 § 2,807
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2007 2006

$ 2,807 $ -
5,300 10,599

2,427 -

(1,637) (499)

1,691 (3,992)

(2,778) (2,000)

281 -

(2,200) (1,301)




Exhibit 10.26
FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT OF KYKUIT RESOURCES, LLC

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED QPERATING AGREEMENT OF KYKUIT RESOURCES, LLC
(the “Amendment”) is entered into as of this 17th day of December, 2007 (the “Effecive Date”), by and between the undersigned
Members of KYKUIT RESOURCES, LLC, an Ohio Limited Liability Company (the “Company”).

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2007, the undersigned Members of the Company entered into the Amended and Restated Operating,
Agreement of Kykuit Resources, LLC (the “Operating Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend the Operating Agreemnt pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars {$10.00), and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned Members here agree as follows:

1. From and after the the Effective Date of this Amendment, the Unit Ownership of the Members shall be as set forth in the
Revised Exhibit “C” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

2. From and after the Effective Date of this Amendment, all refererences in the Operating Agreement to “Units” or “Unit
Ownership” or “proportion to Unit Ownership” or “Membership Interest” shall refer to the allocation of Unit Ownership
reflected in the column of Revised Exhibit C attached hereto entitled “Actual Unit Ownership” and/or “Actual Percentage of
Unti Ownership”.

3. From and after the Effective Date of this Amendment, the two columns of Revised Exhibit C entitled “Effective Unit
Ownership for Hemus Participating Wells” and “Percentage of Unit Ownership for Hemus Participating Wells” reflect the
effective ownership of each Member for those operations of the Company in which Hemus, Ltd. opts to participate on a twen-
ty-five percent (25%) basis pursuant to the Joint Venture Development Agreemnent that was entered into by and between the
Company and and Hemus, Ltd. on or about August 3, 2007.

4. The Operating Agreement is hereby revived and ratified and shall be in full force and effect subject to the modifications stated
herein.

5. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each constituting a duplicate original, but all counterparts shall constitute
one and the same Amendment. Signatures transmitted by by facsimile or email shall be deemed originals for all purposes.

6. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the Operating Agreement, the
provisions of this Amendment shall control and govern.

IN WITNESS WHEREOE this Amendment has been executed as of this date first above written.

/s/ Gregory J. Osborne

John D. Oil and Gas Company
By: Gregory J. Osborne
Its: President

s/ James W. Garrett

Energy West Resources, Inc.
By: James W. Garrett
Its: President and Chief Operating Officer

/s/ Sam Petros

Petros Development Co., LLC
By: Sam Petros
Its: Manager

/s/ Richard M. Qsborne

Richard M. Osborne, Trustee U/T/A 1-13-95
CCAG Limited Partnership

By: TGF Corporation

Its: General Partner

/s/ Steven A. Calabrese

By: Steven A. Calabrese, President of
TGF Corporation

/s/ Steven A. Calabrese

R.C. Enterprises & Development, LLC
By: Steven A.. Calabrese
Its: Managing Member

John D. Qil & Gas Company




Exhibit 10.27

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT OF KYKUIT RESOURCES, LLC

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT OF KYKUIT RESOURCES,
LLC (the “Amendment”) is entered into as of the 27th day of February, 2008 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the
undersigned Members of KYKUIT RESOURCES, LLC, an Ohio Limited Liability Company (the “Company”).

WHEREAS, on May 8, 2007, the undersigned Members of the Company entered into an Operating Agreement of Kykuit
Resources, LLC (the “Original Operating Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2007, the undersigned Members of the Company entered into the Amended and Restated
Operating Agreement of Kykuit Resources, LLC (the “Amended Operating Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2007, the undersigned Members of the Company entered into the First Amendment to
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Kykuit Resources, LLC (the “First Amendment”). The Original Operating
Agreement, the Amended Operating Agreement and the First Amendment are collectively referred to herein as the
“Operating Agreement”.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend the Operating Agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth here-
in.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency
of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned Members here agree as follows:

7. The references to “From and after the Effective Date” in Paragrahs 1 and 2 of the First Amendment are hereby deleted, and
the Unit Ownership of the Members, as set forth in Revised Exhibit “C” of the the First Amendment, shall instead be
deemed to have been effective from and after May 8, 2007.

8. From and after May 8, 2007, all refererences in the Operating Agreement to “Units” or “Unit Ownership” or “proportion to
Unit Ownership” or “Membership Interest” shall refer to the allocation of Unit Ownership reflected in the column of
Revised Exhibit “C" attached to the First Amendment entitled “Actual Unit Ownership” and/or “Actual Percentage of
Unit Ownership”.

9. From and after May 8, 2007, the two columns of Revised Exhibit “C” attached to the First Amendment entitled “Effective
Unit Ownership for Hemus Participating Wells” and “Percentage of Unit Ownership for Hemus Participating Wells”
reflect the effective ownership of each Member for those operations of the Company in which Hemus, Ltd. opts to partici-
pate on a twenty-five percent (25%) basis pursuant to the Joint Venture Development Agreemnent that was entered into by
and between the Company and and Hemus, Ltd. on or about August 3, 2007.

10. The Operating Agreement is hereby revived and ratified and shall be in full force and effect subject to the modifications
stated herein,

11. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each constituting a duplicate original, but all counterparts shall consti-
tute one and the same Amendment. Signatures transmitted by facsimile or email shall be deemed originals for all purpos-
es.

12. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Amendment and the Operating Agreement, the
provisions of this Amendment shall control and govern.
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Exhibit 10.27 (continued)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed as of this date first above written.

/s/ Gregory ]. Osborne

John D. Gil and Gas Company
By: Gregory |. Osborne
Its: President

/s/ James W. Garrett

Energy West Resources, Inc.
By: James W. Garrett
Its: President and Chief Operating Officer

/s/ Sam Petros

Petros Development Co., LLC
By: Sam Petros
Its: Manager

/s/ Richard M. Osborne

Richard M. Osborne, Trustee U/T/A 1-13-95
CCAG Limited Partnership

By: TGF Corporation

Its: General Partner

/sl Steveﬁ A. Calabrese

By: Steven A. Calabrese, President of
TGF Corporation

/s/ Steven A. Calabrese

R.C. Enterprises & Development, LLC
By: Steven A. Calabres
Its: Managing Member
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Exhibit 31.1
Certifications Pursuant to 17 CFR Section 240.13a-14

| [, Richard M. Osborne certify that:

om0

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of John D. Qil and Gas Company;

| 2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and pro-
cedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e) and 15d-15(e) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated sub-
sidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being,
prepared,;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclu-
sions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation: and;

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materi-
ally affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting and;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons per-
forming the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information and;

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the reg-
istrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2008
By: /s/ Richard M. Osborme

Richard M. Osbome
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
Certifications Pursuant to 17 CFR Section 240.13a-14

I, C. Jean Mihitsch certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of Jehn [. Oil
and Gas Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of opera-
tions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e} for the
registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under cur supervision, to provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls
and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proce-
dures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation and;

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the regis-
trant’s most recent fiscal quarter{the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report} that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the regis-
trant’s internal control over financial reporting and;

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed,

based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over finan-
cial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee

of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design

or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
recond, process, summarize and report financial information and;

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management
or other employees who have a significant role in the regis-
trant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2008
By: /s/ C.Jean Mihitsch
C, Jean Mihitsch

Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 321 f

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350, E
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SAR-
BANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 ;

In connection with the filing of the Annual Report of John D.
Qil and Gas Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-KSB for
the period ending December 31, 2007 (the “Report”) with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, I, Richard M. Osborne,
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and I, C. Jean Mihitsch, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

the Report fully complies with the requirements of section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of opera-
tions of the Company.

Date: March 28, 2008
By: /s/ Richard M. Osborne

Richard M. Osborme
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 28, 2008
By: /s/ C.Jean Mihitsch

C. Jean Mihitsch
Chief Financial Officer
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Board of Directors

. Richard M. Osborne
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
Chairman of Energy West Incorporated

Gregory J. Osborne
Director, President, Chief Operating Officer

Steven A. Calabrese
Director, Managing Partner of
Calabrese, Racek and Markos, Inc.

Terence P. Coyne
Director, Commercial Real Estate
Broker with Grubb & Ellis

Richard T. Flenner, Jr.
Director, President & CEQO
of Lake National Bank

Mark D. Grossi
Director, Director of Energy
West Incorporated

Marc C. Krantz
Secretary, Director

Managing Partner of Kohrman
Jackson & Krantz, PLL

James R. Smail
Director, Chairman of ].R. Smail, Inc.

Thomas J. Smith
Corporate Vice President,
CFO of Energy West Incorporated

Richard M. Osborne, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
Gregory J. Osborne, President, Chief Operating Officer

C. Jean Mihitsch, Chief Financial Officer, Assistant Secretary

Jeffery ]. Heidnik, Vice President of Operations







